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CERTIFICATE OF BOARD 

Fredericksburg Independent School Distric_t _ _____,G_i_lle_s~p_ie __ 
Name of School District County 

086901 
Co.-Dist. Number 

We, the undersigned, certify that the attached annual financial reports of the above-named school district were 

reviewed and (check one) ✓ approved __ disapproved for the year ended June 30, 2021 at a meeting of the 

Board of Trustees of such school district on the 171
1, of November, 2021. 

,re of Board Secretary Signature of Board President 

[fthe Board of Trustees disapproved of the auditors' report, the reasons(s) for disapproving it is (are): 
(attach list as necessary) 



Board of Trustees 

NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 

Standard Report on Financial Statements Issued in Accordance with 
Gover11me111 Atulltl11g Sramlrmls or in a Single Audit 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Fredericksburg, Texas 78624 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Fredericksburg Independent School District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Mam,ge11umt's Respom,lhlllty for rile Fl11a11clal Swtemellfs 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or en-or. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Op/Jtlo11s 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of Fredericksburg 
Independertt School District, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

TEL: 830 997 3348 EMAIL: info@nb-cpa.com 
P.O. Box 874 . 512 S Adams Street, Fredericksburg, TX 78624 
MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & TEXAS SOCIETY OF CPAs 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplemenfa,y Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis, budgetary comparison infonuation, schedule of the district's proportionate share of the net pension liability, 
schedule of the district's contributions, schedule of the district's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability and the 
schedule of district contributions for other post-employment benefits on pages 4-15 and 50-57 be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Sucb infonnation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
Fredericksburg Independent School District's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required pa1t of the basic financial 
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The Texas Education Agency requires school districts to include certain information in the Annual Financial and 
Compliance Report in conformity with laws and regulation of the State of Texas. This infonnation is in Exhibits identified 
in the Table of Contents as J-1 through J-3. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in aU material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expendjtures of federal awards are 
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
infom1ation directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial $tatements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements 
and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Govemme11t Auditi11g Stamlanls 

In accordance with Government At1dlling Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 5, 2021, on our 
consideration of Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Fredericksburg Independent School 
District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

~iU~ ->-&o~1 P. l . 
NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 
Fredericksburg, Texas 
November 5, 2021 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended .June 30, 2021 

This section of the Fredericksburg Independent School District's annual financial report presents FISD Administration's discussion 
and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. Please read this narrative overview 
and analysis of the financial activities or the District in conjunction with the District's financial statements, which follow this 
section. 

DISTRICT HIGHLIGHTS 

The Fredericksburg Independent School District (FISD) is located in central Texas in the Texas Hill Country area. Following arc 
some district highlights: 

• FISD Tagline: Inspiring Excellence 
• FISD Vision; FISD students are inspired to be successful and innovative in a diverse and changing world. 
• FISD Mission: FrSD partners with families, students, and community to provide a safe and supportive learning 

environment. We excite the imagination of every student. We engage them in relevant, compelling learning experiences 
in order to prepare for life in a diverse, global society. 

• FISD Core Value.ii: RISE - Respect, Integrity, Students First, and Excellence 
• FISD Goals 

o FISD aspires to ensure that the Five Year Strategic Plan is executed with fidelity. 
o FISD will achieve academic excellence by continuously impl'Oving and delivering high qualify rigorous 

Instruction so ALL students will graduate college, military, and career ready. 
o FISD will maintain financial excellence and maximize district resources. 
o FISD will develop and irnplenient a successful bond strntegy in pru'lne1·ship with the community, parents, and 

schools. 
• The Texas Education /\gency rated FISD as a B (88) on the A - F Accountability scale in 2019. There were no ratings in 

2020 or 2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
• FISD has one high school serving grades 9 through 12. There is om: middle school serving grades 6 through 8. There is 

one large elementary school in the city serving grades 2 through 5 and one small rural elementary school that serves 
grades k through 5. A primary school serves grade Pre-k through grade 1. Additionally, the1·e is one alternative high 
school. 

• The enrollment of the district decreased about 3.5%. Enrollment approximated 3,030. This decrease was mainly 
attrihutable to the COVID-19 pandemic. To minimize transmission of the virus, many parents chose virtual learning for 
thcir children through FISD, homeschooling. or private schools. Attendance was greatly affected us there were strict 
policies in place in an attempt to reduce the spread of the virus. 

• According to usa.com, approximately an additional 583 students attend private schools in the area. This .in1ount$ to 
approximotely 16% of the local school aged children arc not in the public schools. 

• FISD administrative offices is located in the city of Fredericksburg in Gillespie County. The population of the city in 
202 I was 11,786, which is nearly 43% of the population of the entire count)' of 27,560. 

• rlSD has approximately 500 employees that handle school district business in more than 606,000 square feet on 121 
nearly acres. 

• The FISD is located mainly in Gillespie County but also has a small amount of property that extends into Blanco and 
Kendall counties. 

• The land area of the city is only 8.58 square miles, but the square miles that the school district serves is 758, 
• The district is considered a wealthy school district based on proper()' wealth per· student according to the Texas Education 

Agency. Therefore, the district sent $16 million or local property tax revenue to the state of Texas to fund other school 
districts in the current fiscal year. This amounted to over 38% of local property tax revenue sent out of the district, 
however, 51. 7% of the students in the district qualified as Econornically Disadvantaged. 

• According to Data USA, the median household income was $59,155 annually ru; compared to the state average of 
$64,034. However, the median home value was $286,900 in Fredericksburg, but only $200,400 in the state as a whole. 

• The population of the city is 72% Anglo and 22% Hispanic, yet the population of the school district students was 47% 
Anglo, 51 % Hispanic, and 2% various other. 

• The oldest school building in use in the district was built in 1875 and the newest was built in 1994. The district continues 
to renovate older buildings and build additions to existing facilities. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

FINANCIAL HIGfilIGHTS 

6 
Frt:dr;r 1t.k.erf,ur'ri 1£.IJ 

• The District's total net position for governmental activities increased by $5,142,721 during 2020-2021 to $24,093,227 al 
June 30, 2021 (Exhibits A-1 and 8· l ). This was 111ai11ly because of the purchase of capital .issets out of fund equity. 

• The General Fund reported an ending fund balance this year of $12,306.937 (Exhibits C-1 and C-3), which is a decrease 
of $3.895, 784. This is mainly due to the purchase of capital assets and increased recapture payments to the State. 

• Since its inception. for the 19th year in a row, FISD earned a rating of Passed by the Texas Education Agency (TEA) under 
its Financial Integrity Rating System of Texas (FIRST). Superior Achievement is the highest rating possible and is based 
on criteria used to determine the overall financial he.alth and stability of school districts throughout Texas. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of four parts 
• Management's Discussion nnd Analysis (this section) 
• Basic Financial Statements 
• Required Supplementary Information 
• Combining statements for non-major governmental funds (optional). 

Figure A-I below identifies the required components of the District's Annual Financial Report. 

Figure A-1 Required Components of the District's Annual Financial Report 
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Summary = Detail 

The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District: 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

• The first two statements (Exhibits A-I and B-1) arc govemmeilt-wlde j111a11c/a/ st<ttements that provide both long-term 
and short-term information about the District's overall financial status. These provide information about the activities of 
the District as a whole and present a longer-term view of the District's property and debt obligations and other financial 
matters. They reflect the flow of total economic resources in a manner similar to the financial reports or a business 
enterprise. 

• The remaining statements are /um/ fimmcial stateme11ts !hat focus on individual parts of' the government, reporting the 
District's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 

Fund financial statements may include governmental funds statements, proprietary fund stnlcmenls, and fiduciary fund statements. 

• T/Je go11emme111al ftmds statements tell how genernl government services were financed in the short term as well as what 
remains for future spending. They reflect the !low of current financial resources. and supply the basis for tax levies and 
the appropriations budget. 

• Proprietary fimd swteme1tts offer short-term and long-term financial information about the activities the government 
operates I ike businesses. 

• Fid11c/(lry ft,tul statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the District acts solely as a 
trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside the district. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements with narrative and 
provide additional data needed for full disclosure in the government-wide statements or the fund financial statements. The section 
of the reporl containing combining statements is not required by the l exas Education Agency (TEA) but contains detailed 
information about the District's individual funds. 

The statements Are fo llowed by a section or required supplementary information titled TEA. Required Schedules that funlw 
explains and supports the information in the financial statements. The sections labeled TEA Required Schedules and Federal 
AwMds Section contain data used by monitoring or regulatory agencies for assurance that the District is using funds supplied in 
compliance with the terms of gnmts it receives. 

Government-wide Financial Statements - Reporting the District 11s a Whole 

The government-wide statements report information about the District. as 1\ whole using accounting methods similur to those used 
by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes all of the government's assets and liabilities. All of the 
current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Staternent of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The two government-wide statements report the District's net position and how they have changed. Net position (the difference 
between the District's assets and liabilities) is one way to measure the District's financial health. Over time, increases or decreases 
in the District's net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. respectively. To assess 
the overall health of the District, one needs to consider additional non-financial factors such as changes in the District's tax base, 
changes in the District's average daily attendance and the condition of District facilitlcs. 

Most of the District's basic services such as instruction, extracurricular activities, curriculum, staff development, heulth services 
and general administration are included in the government-wide financial statements. Property taxes and grants finance most of 
these activities. 

Fund Financial Statements - Reporting the Dista-ict's Most Significant Funds 

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant funds-not the District as a 
whole. Funds are accounting devices that the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular 
purposes. Laws and contracts require the District to establish some funds. Other funds, such as Campus Activity Fund~. are set 
up to help the District manage and control money for particular purposes. 

All of the funds of the District can be divided into ihrce categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds: 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

• Governmental fimds-Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on how cash, 
and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. flow in and out and the balances left al year-end that are 
available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps 
determine whether there are mo.re or fewer financial resources that c1in be spent in the nea1· future to finance the District's 
programs. We provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement that explains the 
relationship (or differences) between them because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of 
the government-wide statements. 

• Proprieta1J; fimds- These funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail. Enterprise funds arc used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. The District has no business-type activities or enterprise funds. The second type 
of proprietary fund is the internal service fund. Internal se1·viee funds ;i.re an accounting device used to accumulate and 
allocate costs internally among the various functions. Al year end. the District has no Internal Service Funds. 

• Fid!lcia1y fimdr- The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds. Due to a trust arrangement, lhc District is 
responsible for assets that can be used only for the trust beneficiaries, ·nie District is responsible for ensuring that the 
assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the District's fiduciary activities are reported in 
a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Fiducia1·y Net Position. We exclude these 
activities from the District's government-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance 
its operations. Fiduciary funds for the District include scholarship and student activity funds. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

All of the District's restricted net position represents proceeds from lax collections that are restricted for bond debt payment ond 
capital p1·ojects and other minor purposes. 

Unrestricted net position reflects a deficit created by a prior period adjustment resulling from the implementation of GASB 75 in 
fiscal year 20 I 8 for OPEB. Although the District reports a deficit, the deficit is primarily due to reporting the District's proportionate 
share of the net OPEB liability. The total district liability is reported in the governmental activities; however, the actual liability 
docs not require the use of current resources at the fund level, which results in a liming difference since the TRS-Care plan is 
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The District has made all contractually required contributions as noted in the 
required supplementary infonnation and has sufficient fund balance to meet the District's ongoing obligations to students and 
creditors. 

Table A-1 provides detail on the District's combined net position, which was $24,093,227 on June 30. 2021. 
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Fredericksbul'g Independent School District 6 Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 
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Table A-l 
Fredericksburg Independent School Distl'ict 

Changes in Net Position 
2020 / 202l 20l9 / 2020 ¾Ch:lll!!C 

Currc1il Assets: 

Cnsh and cash equivalents $ 30,738,609 $ 20,278,367 51.58% 

Due from Other Governments $ 4,672,l 88 $ 3,297,799 41.68% 

Rc:ceivublcs/Supplies $ 2,028.863 $ 1.914,980 5.95% 

Total Current Assets $ 37.439 660 $ 25.491 146 46.87% 

No11c111n11t Assets: 

Prepayments $ 11 5.738 $ 21170 51233.55% 

Totiil Nonc1ment Assets $ 115.738 $ 2,170 -90.19% 

Cnpitnl Assets: 

Land and Buildings $ 44,953,584 $ 39,187,287 14.71% 

Furniture & Equipn1e1it $ 1,600,975 $ 2,129,773 -24.83% 

Construction in Progress $ 47,727 $ 25 082 90.28% 

Total Noncurrent AsseL~ $ 46,602,286 $ 41.342,142 12.72% 

Total Assets $ 84,157,684 $ 66i§JS1458 25.92% 

Deferred Outnows of Resources; 

Deferred outnmvs-Othcr Post Retirement Benefits $ 1,234,807 $ 1,422,436 -13.19% 

Deferred outflows-TRS Pension $ 2.993,239 $ 3,576,117 -16.30% 

Total Deferred Outflo,,;s of Resources $ 4.228.046 $ 4,998,553 -15.41% 

Current Linbilitics: 

AccounlS Payubh: und Accrued liabilities $ 3,514,274 $ 3,580,520 -1.85% 

Due to OU1er Governments $ 16,559.585 $ 343,903 4,715.19% 

Bonds Payable-current $ 2,720.000 $ 4,040,000 32.67% 

Dcfcrrcd/Uncnmcd Revenue $ 57.633 $ 62,603 •7.94% 

Total Current Liabilities $ 22.851,492 $ 81027.026 184.68% 

Noncurreut Liabilities: 

Bonds Payable-due in more than one year $ 14,245,000 $ 16,965,000 -16.03% 

Net Pension Liability (District sliare) $ 8.310.645 $ 7,974,442 4,22% 

Net OPEB Liabilily (District's Shure) $ 9.372.618 $ 12,088.618 -22.47% 

Total Noncurrcnt Liabilities $ 31 ,928,263 $ 37.,028,060 • I 3. 77% 

Totnl l iabilities $ 54.779,755 $ 45,055,086 21 .58% 

Deferred ln0ows or Rcsout'ccs: 

Deferred lnllows-OPEB $ 8,005,025 $ 5,956,842 34.38% 

Deferred Inflows-TR$ Pension $ 1,507.723 $ 1,871.577 -19.44% 

Total Deferred lnllows of Resources $ 9.512.748 $ 7.8:28.419 21.52% 

Net Position: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 29,637,286 $ 20.090,144 47.52% 

Restricted for Fcdcrnl and State Programs $ 513,225 $ 345,113 48.71% 

Restricted for Debt Service $ 1,728,928 $ 1,545,931 11.84% 

Reslric\ed for Cnpital Projects $ 45 1,491 $ 1,488,936 -69.68% 

Restricted for Campus Activities $ 266,613 $ 264,659 0.74% 

Unrestricted $ (81so41316l $ (4.784.277l -77.76% 

Totnl Net Position $ 24.093,227 $ 18,950.506 27.14% 

Tou,1 Liabilities and Net Position s 88,385,730 s 71,834,011 23.04% 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 6 
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The District's total revenues were $6 l .2 million (Exhibit C-3). A signific.int portion (75%) of the District's revenue come~ from 
local taxes. 

Misc. Local 
Charges for Svcs-..........._ 1 % 

4% ~ 
Federal Aid------

10% ---.. 

State Aid_ 
10% 

---------- - - - - --- - - - -

Figul'eA-2 
Sources of ReYenue 

Taxes 
75% 

Mouse Bill 3, which pnssed during the 86th legislative session in 2019, was a sweeping and historic school finance bill. House Bill 
3 required ll111t a district's M&O rate be reduced by 7% and provided for automatic tnx rate reductions starting in the second year 
if property value grows by more than 2.5% per year (no district can be compressed more than 10% lower than the highest M&O 
rate in the State). This caused the majority of districts to have a compressed rate of $0.93 plus up to four additional pennies for 
their 2019-2020 tax rate, and resulted in FISD's tax rate to drop to $0.9491 for 2020-202 1. 

Other notable changes included increasing the Basic Allotment (13A) by $1.020, a requirement for slrnctured teacher pay increases 
in any year the BA is increased, establishing a few new a.1 lotments, removing others, and increasing the weights of special education, 
compensatory education. and allowing weights to also be considered for Career & Technical classes in grades 7-8. 

There we1·e several other modifications made in order to focus on learning and improving student outcomes better, and considering 
student need in the funding formulas. 

Governmental Activities 

The combined ta.-: r.ite for 2020-2021 decreased from the prior year by $.0209 to$ 1.0553. 
• The ta ... rate for the General Operating Fund decreased from the prior year by $0.0209 to $0.9491 per$ I 00 of valuation. 
• Tile Debt Service ponion of the tax rate was the same as in the prior year at $0.1062. 

The total cost of all programs and services was $56.5 million (Exhibit B-1 ). Of these costs. 55% are for instructional and student 
support services and 28¾ pa.id to educate students from another district under Recapture ruling. Other costs total 17%. 

The amount that our taxpayers paid for these activities through property taxes was $46 million (81 %). Costs paid by those who 
directly benefited from the programs totaled $2.4 million (4%) State and Federal Grants and Contributions covered $6.1 million 
(10.8%) of these costs. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended .June 30, 2oi1 

Table A-2 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 

Changes in Net Position 

Program Revenues: 
Charges for Services 
Operating Grants & Contributions 

General Revenues: 
Properly Taxes 
Grunts & Contributions-not restricted 
Investment Earnings 
Other 

Total Revenues 

Expenses: 
Jnst1·uction & Related Services 
Instructional & School Leadership 
Student Suppor1 Services 
General Administrative 
Plant Support Services 
Ancillary Services 
Debt Service 
Contracted Instructional Services 
Inter-governmental charges 

Total Expenses 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 
Net Position Beginning 

Net Position Ending 

2020 /2021 

$ 2,423,184 

$ 6,113.490 

$ 46,068,998 

$ 6,236.045 
$ 45,733 

$ 788.668 

$61,676.118 

$ 21,534,205 

$ 2,805,479 

$ 6,667,764 

$ 1,476,605 

$ 5,376,950 

$ 558,707 

$ 426,138 

$ 16,051 ,622 

$ 1.635.927 

$ 56.533,397 

$ 5, 142,721 

$ 18,950,506 

$24,093,227 

2019 / 2020 

$ 2,610,2 18 
$ 5,551 ,911 

$44,659.211 
$ S,429,457 
$ 388,669 

$ 445.430 

$ 59,084,896 

$22,761,039 

$ 2.939,853 

$ 7,024,682 
$ 1,419,978 

$ 5,222,534 

$ 380,117 

$ 604,577 

$ 13 ,393,440 

$ 2,080,158 

$ 55,826.358 

$ 3,258,538 

$ 15,691.968 

$ 18,950,506 

% 
Change 

-7. 17% 
10.12% 

3.16% 

14.86% 

-88.23% 

77.06% 

4.39% 

-5.39% 

-4.57% 

-5.08% 
3.99% 

2.96% 

46.98% 

-29.51% 

19.85% 

-21.36% 

1.28% 

57.82% 
20.77% 

27.14% 

Table A-3 below pre-sen ts the cost of each of the District's largest functions as well as each function ·s net cost (total cost less fees 
generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what w11s funded by stnte revenues as well as local tox 
dollars. The cost of all governmental activities this year wa~ $56.5 million (Exhibit B-1 ). 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Table A-3 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 

Net Cost of Selected District Functions 

2020/2021 

I nstruotion $ 21,534.205 
School Leadership $ 

Extra/Co-Curricular $ 
General Administration $ 
Plant Maintenance & Operations $ 

Debt Service - Interest & Charges $ 

Contracted Instructional Services $ 

Recapture 
24% 

Facilities 
13% 

2,805,479 
1,735,325 
1,476,605 
5,376,950 

426,138 
16,051 ,622 

Debt Service 

Total Cost 
% 

2019/2020 Change 

$ 22,761,039 -5.39% 
$ 2,939,853 -4.57% 

$ 1.831 ,456 -5.25% 
$ 1.419.978 3.99% 
$ 5,222,534 2.96% 
$ 604,557 -29.51% 
$ 13,393,440 19.85% 

Inter-gov Charges 
2% 

7% Ancillary Plant Support 
7% 1% 

Net Cost 

2020/2021 2019/2020 
$17,704,190 $ 18,308,273 
$ 2,752,795 $ 2,673, 187 
$ 1.244.376 $ 1,334.226 
$ 1.461.796 $ 1.374,759 
$ 5,156,741 $ 4,990,510 
$ 426,138 $ 604,557 
$ 16,051,622 $ 13,393,440 

Figure ..,--1-3 
E_,7:,e11diture.~· 

Instruction 

Administrative 
2% 

30% 

School Leadership 
4% 

Student Support 
10% 

The District's total expenditures were $65,402,843 (Exhibit C-3). Note that the direct instmctional percentage increases from 30% 
lo 56% when the Recapture payment to other school districts and TEA and Debt Service and Construction expenditures arc removed 
from the calculation. , 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 

Revenues from all governmental fund types totaled $61 .2 million, an increase of$3.6 million, and the recapture payment increased 
by approximately $2.7 million, providing a net increase of approximately $0.9 million, or a 1.5% increase. Student enrollment 
decreased by 112, or 3.5% mainly due to the corona virus pandemic. Initial estimates were for a slight decrease in students. Among 
other increased costs, a 2% average raise was provided to all employees. Payroll c-0sts comprise about 80% of the district's 
operating expenditures. 
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% 
Change 

-3.30% 
-2.98% 
-6.73% 
6.33% 
3.33% 

-29.5 1% 
19.85% 



Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the year, the District revises its budget monthly us needed. General Fund actual expenditures we1·e $5. l million 
below final budget amounts (Exhibit 0-1 ). 

The most significant positive variances resulted from unfilled staffing positions during the year. Staffing is budgeted for full 
employment of all positions during the year. however. due to the pandemic, full staffing was difficult to obtain. Budget amounts 
for vacant positions throughout the year arc not adjusted in the budget since they are expected to be filled by the next budget cycle. 
Additionally, due to the cornnavirus pandemic, federal funding became available to the District for certain costs in 2020-202 1 
which wasn' t originally anticipated. Spending was controlled due to the strict budget system the school district utilizes. 

Resources available were slightly less than the final budgeted amount. This was mainly due to less local revenue earned amidst 
the coronavirus pandemic. 

School Nutrition Fund Highlights 

On December I, 2007, in fiscal 2007-2008, the District became a self-operated. self-sustaining School Nutrition Program. Since 
that time. the District fully se1·ves t.he school nutrition needs of FISD students. The School Nutrition Fund ended with a positive 
fund balance of $544,603 for the fiscal year which is within the allowable level (see Exhibit I I· I, 1-J.2, and J-2). 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

Al the end of the fiscal year, the District hud cumulatively invested $46.6 million in a broad range of capital assets, including land, 
equipment. buildings, and vehicles. (See Table A-4 and Note Ill, I~) This amount represents a net increase (including additions and 
deductions) of approximately $5 .3 million over the prior year. 

Table A-4 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 

Capital Assets 
(Net of accumulated depreciation) 

Governmental Activities 
2020/2021 2019 /2020 

Land $ 8,650,833 $ 1,306,817 
Building & Improvements $ 73,536.128 $ 72,603,438 

Equipment $ 11 ,823,500 $ 11 ,838,402 

Construction in Progress $ 47,727 $ 25,082 

Totals at historical cost $ 94.058, 188 $ 85.773,739 

Total Accumulated Depreciation $ (47.455,902) $( 44.431 .597) 

Net Capital Assets $ 46,602.286 $ 41,342,142 

Long Term Debt 

% Chnngc 

561.9% 
l.28¾ 

-0.13% 
-90.28% 

9.66% 

6.81% 

12.72% 

At year-end the District had $16,965,000 in bonds outstanding as shown in Table A-5 nnd on Exhibit A-1. More detailed 
information about the District's debt is presented in the Notes Ill, G to the financial statements. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Table A~5 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 

Long Term Debt 

2020/2021 2019 / 2020 

$ 16,965,000 $ 21,005,000 

% 
change 

-19.23% 

ECON01\1IC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Bond Ratings 

The District's bonds 
presently carry "AAA" 
ratings with an underlying 
rating from Standard & 
Poors of"AA-". 

The Dislricl's budget for lhe nexl yeur 2021-2022 was adopted on June 28. 202 I. The following factors were considered by the 
Board in adopting the budget for 2021 - 2022: 

Revenues 
• The General Operating Fund revenue budget was approved for just over $49 million reflecting approximately the same 

amount as the final budget for the prior yeor due to higher property values offset by a lower tax rate. 
• For 202 1/22, lhe M&O rnle dropped from $0.9491 lo $0.872 and the I & S remained at $0.1062, for a total tax rate of 

$0.9782. 
• The Gillespie County certified tax roll freeze adjusted taxable value totaling $4.2 billion for 2021-2022 for the District 

retlecls an increase of.just over $700 million or 20% over the 1:1djustcd roll for the prior year. 

The district does receive a smnll nmounl of stale revenue. however the umounl sent to the stale has far exceeded the 1:1rnounl 
received over lhe last many years as shown in the charts below. 

$60,000,000 

$50,000,000 

$40,000,000 

$30,000,000 

$20,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$-

Local 

■ State 

General Fund - State vs. Local Revenue 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Net State Rev 

$4,000,000 

0 $2,000,000 

S· -
$(2,000,000) 

$(4,000,000) 

$(6,000,000) 

$(8,000,000) 

$(10,000,000) 

$(12,000,000) 

$(14,000,000) 

• Average Daily Attendance (ADA) is a component of lhe stale funding formulas for schools in Texas. An increase in 
average daily attendance can result in increased state funding, depending on other factors in the formula. Changes in 
ADA usually result from overall changes in the student population. Total refined average daily attendonce (ADA) 
changes slightly from yeur lo yeor. 

Fiscal Year Refined ADA Percenta2e Chan2e 
2005-2006 2,676 
2006-2007 2,632 - 1.60% 
2007-2008 2 660 + 1.10% 
2008-2009 2,670 + 0.40% 
2009-2010 2,764 + 3.50% 
2010-2011 2 794 + 1.10% 
2011-2012 2,769 - 0.90% 
2012-2013 2,804 + l.30% 
2013-2014 2 794 - 0.30% 
2014-2015 2,844 + 1.80% 
2015-2016 2,940 + 3.40% 
2016-2017 2 987 + 1.60% 
2017-2018 2 970 -0.50% 
20 I 8-20 I 9 2,918 - l.75% 
2019-2020 2 949 + 1.06% 
2020-2021 2,827 - 4.14% 
2021-2022 2,794 est -1. l 7% 

,..-
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Expenditures 
• The General Operating Fund expenditure budget was approved for nearly $49 million for a balanced budget. 
• There was a 2% on average employee compensation increase. 
• The recapture payment to TEA is estimated at $ I 5. 7 million fol' 2021-2022. This is a decrease of $330,000 in 

expenditures, while state and local revenue will also decrease by approximately the same amount, fo1· an estimated net 
effect of $0. 

• In mid-June 2019 the 861h Texas Legislature passed House Bill 3, a sweeping and histol'ic school finance bill. The 
majority of the changes and requirements were effective with the 2019-2020 year. The Texas Education Agency 
continues to determine legislative intent and provides guidance for subsequent year changes. The FISD continues to 
analyze and monitor the required changes and adjusts accordingly. 

• The District's fund balance position as of June 30, 202 1 reflects funds available to use for one-time or capital 
expenditures. The Board has identified a number of projects for consideration from the avai.lablc local capital projects 
fund. 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditms with a general 
overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's nccountnbilily for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the FISD Assistant Superintendent for Business or 
log on at https://fredericksburg.esc I 1.nct/Domain/24. 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITrON 

JUNE 30, 202 1 

Data 
Control 
Codes 

ASSETS 
1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
11 20 Current Investments 
1220 Property Taxes• Delinquent 
1230 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 
1240 Due from Other Governments 
1290 O1her Receivables, Ncl 
1300 Inventories 
1410 Prepayments 

Capi1al Assets: 
1510 Land 
IS20 Buildings, Net 
1530 Furniture and Equipment, Net 
IS80 Construction in Progress 

1000 Total Assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
1705 Deferred Outtlow Related to TRS Pension 
1706 Deferred Outflow Related 10 TRS OPES 

1700 Total Deferred Outtlows of Resources 

LIABILITIES 
2110 Accounts Payable 
2140 Interest Payable 
2150 Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 
2160 Accrued Wages Payable 
2180 Due to Other Governments 
2300 Unearned Revenue 

Noncut'rent Liabi lities: 
2501 Due Within One Year: Loans, Nole, Leases, etc. 

Due in More than One Year: 
2502 Bonds, Notes, Leases, etc. 
2540 Net Pension Liability (District's Share) 
2545 Net OPEB Liability (District's Share) 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
2605 Deferred lntlow Related to TRS Pension 
2606 Deferred Inflow Related to TRS OPEB 

2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

NET POSITION 

3200 Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted: 

3820 Restricted for Federal and State Programs 
3850 Restricted for Debt Service 
3860 Restricted for Capital Projects 
3870 Restricted for Campus Activ ities 
3900 Unrestricted 

3000 Total Net Position 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Primary Government 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 3,094,088 
27,644.521 

1,983,952 
(99,1 97) 

4,672,188 
66,696 
77,412 

115.738 

8,650,833 
36,302,75 I 

1,600,975 
47,727 

84, 157,684 

2,993,239 
1,234,807 

4,228,046 

168,283 
138,918 
246,767 

2,960,306 
16,559,585 

57.633 

2,720,000 

14,245,000 
8,310,645 
9,372,618 

54,779,755 

1,507,723 
8,005,025 

9.512,748 

29.637,286 

5 I 3,225 
1,728,928 

451,491 
266,613 

(8,504,316) 

$ 24,093,227 

EXHIBIT A-I 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202 1 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

Program Revenues 

Primary Government: 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 

11 Instruction 
12 Instructional ResoUl'ces and Media Services 
13 Curriculum and Instructional Staff Development 
21 Instructional Leadership 
23 School Lei1dership 
31 Guidance, Counseling. and Evnluntion Services 
32 Social Work Services 
33 Health Services 
34 Student (Pupil) Transponation 
35 Food St:1rvices 
36 Extracurricular Activitie-s 
41 General Administration 
SI Faci lities Maintenance and Operations 
52 Security and Monitoring Services 
53 Data Pi-ocessing Services 
61 Community Services 
72 Debt Service - Lnlerest on Long-Term Debt 
91 Contracted Instructional Services Between Schools 
92 Incremental Costs related to WADA 
93 Payments Related to Shared Services Arnmgements 
99 Other Intergovernmental Charges 

$ 2 1,1 47,8 11 
300,386 

86.008 
755,479 

2,050,000 
1.761.215 

145,230 
560,221 
935,262 

1,530,511 
1,735,325 
1,476,605 
3,964,048 

98,695 
1,314,207 

558,707 
426, 138 

16,004,6 19 
47,003 

962.588 
673,339 

$ 

Charges for 
Services 

314,350 
477,74 1 

125,176 

259,303 

1,246,614 

$ 

[TPI TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT: $ 56,533.397 $ 2,423, 184 $ 

D111n 
Control 
Cod~ 

MT 
DT 
GC 
LE 
Ml 

TR 

CN 

NO 

NE 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

P1·ope11y Taxes, Levied for General Purposes 
Propr.:rly Taxes. Levied for Debt Servi er.: 

Grants and Contributions not Restricted 
Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous Local and Intermediate Revenue 

Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning 

Net Position - Ending 

The notes to the financial statements are ai, integral part of this statement. 
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4 
Opermir1g 
Grants and 

Contributions 

3,723,381 
53,484 
53,150 
22.970 
29,714 

468,93 l 
126,747 
72,201 
10,932 

1,245,3 14 
13,208 
14,809 
35.934 
45,827 
13.272 
43 ,616 

140,000 

6, 113.490 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT B- 1 

Net (ExperlSC) 
Revenue and 

Changes in Net 
Posilio11 

(i 

Primary Oov. 
Governmental 

Activities 

(17,424,430) 
(246,902) 

(32,858) 
(732,509) 

(2,020,286) 
(1,292.284) 

(18,483) 
(488,020) 
(924,330) 

29,153 
( 1,244,376) 
( 1,46 1,796) 
(3,802,938) 

(52,868) 
(1,300.935) 

(255,788) 
(426, 138) 

( 16,004,619) 
(47,003) 
424,026 

(673,339) 

(47,996,723) 

41 ,44 1,168 
4,627,830 
6,236,045 

45,733 
788,668 

53,139,444 

5,142,721 

18,950,506 

24.093 ,227 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

ASSETS 
1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
1120 Investments - Current 
1220 Property Taxes - Delinquent 
1230 Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes 
1240 Due from Other Governments 
1260 Due from Other Funds 
1290 Other Receivables 
1300 Inventories 
1410 Prepayments 
1000 Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
2110 Accounts Payable 
:2150 Payroll Deductions and Withholdings Payable 
2160 Accrued Wages Payable 
2170 Due to Other Funds 
2180 Due to Other Governments 
2300 Unearned Revenue 

2000 Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
2601 Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 
2600 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable Fund Balance: 

3410 Inventories 
3430 Prepaid Items 

Restricted Fund Balance: 
3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 
3480 Retirement of Long~ Tenn Debt 
3490 Other Restricted Fund Balance 

Committed Fund Balance: 
3510 Construction 
3545 Other Conunitted Fwld Balance 

Assigned Fund Balance: 
3590 Other Assigned Fund Balance 
3600 Unassigned Fund Balance 

3000 Total Fund Balances 

4000 Total Liabilities, Defmed Inflows & Fund Balances 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

10 50 
General Debt Service 

Fund F11nd 

1,439,156 $ 672,889 
25,586,813 1,046, 196 

1,810,283 173,669 
(90,514) (8,683) 

2,024,995 9,843 
2,685,353 

66,503 
46,449 

114,068 

33,683,106 $ 1,893,914 

165,370 $ 
246,767 

2,579, 196 
124,454 

16,531,178 
9,435 

19,656,400 

1,719,769 164,986 

1,7 19,769 164,986 

46,449 
114,068 

1,728,928 

38,5 14 
12,107,906 

12,306,937 1,728,928 

33,683,106 $ 1,893,9 14 

60 
Capital 
Projects 

$ I 
414,598 

36,892 

$ 45 1,491 

$ 

451.491 

451,491 

$ 45 1,491 



EXHIBIT C-1 

Total 
Other Governmental 
Funds Fu111.ls 

$ 982,042 $ 3,094,088 
596,914 27,644,52 1 

1,983,952 
(99, 197) 

2,637,350 4,672, 188 
2,722,245 

193 66,696 
30,963 77,412 

1,670 115,738 

$ 4,249, 132 $ 40,277,643 

$ 2,9 13 $ 168,283 
246,767 

38 1,110 2,960,306 
2,597,79 1 2,722,245 

28,407 16,559,585 
48, 198 57,633 

3,058,419 22,7 14,819 

1,884,755 

1,884,755 

30,963 77,412 
415 114,483 

513,225 513,225 
1,728,928 

45 ),491 

379,497 379,497 
266,6 13 266,613 

38;514 
12, 107,906 

1, 190,7 13 15,678,069 

$ 4,249, 132 $ 40,277,643 
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FREDERJCKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2021 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not 
reported in governmental funds. At the beginning of the year, the cost of these assets was 
$85,773,739 and the accumulated depreciation was ($44,431,597). In addition, long-term 
liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period, and, 
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The net effect of including the beginning 
balances for capital assets (net of depreciation) and long-term debt in the governmental 
activities is to increase net position. 

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in the 
fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and 
reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net effect of 
including the 2021 capital outlays and debt principal payments is to increase net position. 

[ncluded in the items related to debt is the recognition of the District's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability required by GASB 68. The net position related to TRS included a 
deferred resource outflow in the amount of $2,993,239, a deferred resource inflow in the 
amount of $1 ,507,723, and a net pension liability in the amount of $8,310,645. This resulted 
in a decrease in net position. 

Included in the items related to debt is the recognition of the Distrids proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability required by GASB 75. The net position related to TRS included a 
deferred resource outflow in the amount of $1,234,807, a deferred resource inflow in the 
amount of $8,005,025, and a net OPEB liability in the amount of $9,372;618. This resulted in 
a decrease in net position. 

The 2021 depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net effect of the 
current year's depreciation is to decrease net position. 

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the modified 
accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accottnting. These include recognizing 
unavailable revenue from property taxes as revenue and recognizing the liabilities associated 
with maturing long-term debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and 
recognitions is to increase net position. 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT C-2 

15,678,069 

20,337,142 

12,557,674 

(6,825, 129) 

(16, 142,836) 

(3,204,170) 

1,692;477 

24,093,227 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES lN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Dula 
Co111rol 

Codes 

REVENUES: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 
5900 Federal Program Revenues 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 

00! ! Instruction 
0012 Instructional Resources and Media Services 
0013 Curriculum and Instructional Staff Development 
0021 Instructional Leadership 
0023 School Leadership 
0031 Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 
0032 Social Work Services 
0033 rlealth Services 
0034 Student (Pupi I) Transportation 
0035 Food Services 
0036 ExtracUl'ricular Activities 
0041 General Administration 
005 I Pacilities Maintenance and Operations 
0052 Security and Monitoring Services 
0053 Data Processing Services 
0061 Community Services 

Debt Service: 
0071 Principal on Long-Tern, Debt 
0072 I ntcrest on Long-Term Debt 

Capital Outlay: 
0081 Facilities Acquisition and Construction 

Intergovernmental: 
009! Contracted Instructional Services Between Schools 
0092 Incremental Costs Associated with Chapter 4 I 
0093 Payments to fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA 
0099 Other Intergovernmental Charges 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 

0100 Fund Balance - July I (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

10 

General 
Fund 

42,838,268 $ 
5,403,723 

812,866 

50 

Debt Service 
Fund 

4.667,144 $ 
19,455 

--- ---
49,054.857 

15,069,584 
20 1,503 

17,534 
367.944 

1.845.933 
813,547 

4,760 
336,621 
939,874 

1,513,811 
1,334,347 
3.529,916 

50,208 
1,190,172 

467.812 

7.725,526 

16,004,619 
47.003 

816,588 
673,339 

52,950,641 

(3.895.784) 

16,202,721 

4,686,599 

4.040,000 
463,602 

------
4,503,602 

182,997 

1,545,93 1 

12,306,937 $ 1,728,928 $ 

60 

Capital 
Project._~ 

1,559 

1,559 

54.931 

27,319 
19,395 

519,7!!5 

621 ,430 

(6 19,871) 

1,071,362 

451 ,491 



EXHIBIT C-3 

Total 
Other Governrne11tal 
Funds Funds 

$ 1,735,271 $ 49.242,242 
307,1 11 5,730,289 

5,413,257 6,226, 123 

7.455,639 61 ,198,654 

4,005,458 19,129,973 
70.575 272,078 
61,241 78,775 

3 14,372 682,3 16 
2.570 1.848,503 

780, 190 1,593,737 
126,625 131 ,385 
173,001 509,622 

939,874 
1.388,209 1.388,209 

128,575 1,642,386 
1,158 1.335,505 

16,981 3,574,216 
45,827 11 5.430 

5,908 1. 196,080 
37,836 505.648 

4,040,000 
463.602 

22,644 8,267,955 

16,004,6 19 
47.003 

146,000 962.588 
673,339 

7,327,170 65,402,843 

128,469 (4,204,189) 

1,062,244 19,882,258 

$ 1,1 90,713 $ 15,678,069 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTR1CT EXHIBIT C-4 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund 
financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and reductions in long­
term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net effect of removing the 2021 capital 
outlays and debt principal payments is to increase net position. 

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not require the use 
of current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's depreciation is to decrease net 
position. 

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the modified accrual 
basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include recognizing unavailable revenue 
from property taxes as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the revenue earned from the 
current year's tax levy, reclassifying the proceeds of bond sales, and recognizing the liabilities 
associated with maturing long-term debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and 
recognitions is to increase net position. 

GASB 68 required that certain plan expenditures be de~expended and recorded as deferred resource 
outflows. These contributions made after the measurement date of the plan caused the change in 
ending net position to increase by $584,915. Contributions made before the measurement date and 
during the previous fiscal year were also expended and recorded as a reduction in net pension 
liability. This caused a decrease in the change in net position totaling $537,242. Finally, the 
proportionate share of the TRS pension expense on the plan as a whole had to be recorded. The net 
pension expense decreased the change in net position by $602,900. The net result is a decrease in the 
change in net position. 

GASB 75 required that certain plan expenditures be de-expended and recorded as deferred resource 
outflows. These contributions made after the measurement date of the plan caused the change in 
ending net position to increase by $162,889. Contributions made before the measurement date and 
during the previous fiscal year were also expended and recorded as a reduction in net OPEB 
liability. This caused a decrease in the change in net position totaling $156,615. Finally, the 
proportionate share of the TRS OPEB expense on the plan as a whole had to be recorded. The net 
OPEB expense increased the change in net position by $473,914. The net result is an increase in the 
change in net position. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

(4,204, 189) 

12,557,674 

(3 ,204,170) 

68,445 

(555,227) 

480,188 

5,142,721 



FREDER1CKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments • Current 
Other Receivables 
Restricted Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Restricted for Scholarships 
Restricted for Other Purposes 

JUNE 30, 202 I 

$ 

EXHIBIT E-1 

836-849 
Investment Custodial 

Trust Fund Fund 

55,226 $ 123,429 
451,430 

1,846 
37,113 

545,615 $ 123,429 

41 

41 

545,574 
123,429 

Total Net Position $ 545,574 $ 123,429 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OP CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY FUND NET POSITION 

FLDUCIA.RY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

ADDITIONS: 
Cocurricular Services or Activities 

Earnings from Temporary Deposits 

Contributions, Gifts and Donations 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Professional and Contracted Services 
Supplies and Materials 

Other Deductions 

Total Deductions 

Change in Fiduciary Net Position 

Total Net Position • July I (Beginning) 

Total Net Position -June 30 (Ending) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

836-849 

lnveslmenl 
Trust Fund 

2,918 

55,538 

58,456 

1,890 

43,04 1 

44,931 

13,525 

532,049 

545,574 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT E-2 

Custodial 
Fund 

75,551 

75,551 

952 
99,400 

100,352 

(24,80 I) 

148,230 

123,429 



Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Fredericksburg Independent School District (the "District") is a public educational agency operating under the applicahle 
laws and regulations of the Stnte of Texas. It is governed by n seven-member Bonrd of Trustees (the "Board'') elected by 
registered voters of the District. The District prepares its basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other 
authoritative sources identilicd in GASB Statement No. 56, and it complit:s with the requirements of the appropriate 
version of Texas Education Agency's Financial Accounlability Sys/em Resource Guide (the "Resource Guide") and the 
requirements of contructs and grunts of agencies from which it receives funds. 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 

The Board of Trustees (the "Board") is elected by the public and it has the authority to make decisions, appoint 
admi.nistrators and managers, and significantly influence operntions. It also has the primary accountability for fiscal 
mattel's. Therefore, the L>istrict is a financial reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Sta11dards 
Board ("GASB'') in its Statement No. 14. "The Financial Reporting Entity.'' There are no component uni ts included 
within the reporting entity. 

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Statement of Net Position and lhe Statement of Activities are government-wide lin~ncial statements. They report 
information on all ofthe Fredericksburg Independent School District nonliduciary activities with most of the interfund 
activities removed. Governmental activilies include programs supported primarily by taxes, State foundation funds, 
grants, and other intergovernmental revenues. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates how other people or entities that participate- in programs the District operations 
have shared in the payment of the direct costs. The "charges for services" column includes payments made by parties 
that purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segment of the District. 
Examples include tuition paid by students not residing in the district. school lunch charges, etc. The "grants and 
contributions" column includes amounts paid by organizations outside the District to help meet the operational or capital 
requirements of u given function. 8xarnples include grants under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act. If a 
revenue is not a program revenue. ii is 1:1 gencrnl revenue used to support all orthe District's fimcti6ns. Taxes are always 
general revenues. 

lnterl'und activities between governmental funds appear as due to/due froms on the Governmental Pund Balance Sheet 
and as other resources and other uses 0 11 the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Pund Balance. All interfund transactions between governmental funds are eliminated on the government-wide 
statements. lnierfund activities between governmental funds and fiduciary funds remain as due to/due froms on the 
government-wide Statement of Net Position. 

The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of operations for two fund categories 
- governmental and fiduciary. Since the resources in the fiduciary funds cannot be used for District operations. they are 
not included in government-wide statements. The District considers some governmental funds major and reports their 
financial condition and results of operations in a separate column. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expense.s from non-operating items. Operating revenu1:s and expenses result 
from providing services and pl'Oducing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
All other revenues and expenses arc non.operating. The District has no such funds. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Yea•· Ended June 30, 2021 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

The governmenl-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as do the fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues arc recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when a liabi lity is incurred, regardless ofthe timing of the related cash tlows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmenta l fund financial statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual 
basis of accounling. With this measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities and fund balances are included 
on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present net increases and decreases in curr·ent assets (i.e .. 
revenues and other financing sources and expenditures and other financing uses). 

The modified t1ccrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become both 
measurable and available, and it recognizes expenditures in the accounting period in which thc rund liability is incurred, 
if measurable, except for unrnatured interest and princi pal on long-term debt, which is recognized when due. The 
expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and judgments are recognized when the obligations are 
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The District considers all revenues available if 
they are collectible within 60 doys after year end. 

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the 
State arc recognized under the "susceptible Lo accrual" concept that is, when they nre both mensurable and avai lable. The 
District considers them ''available" if they will be collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Miscellaneous 
revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually 
received. Investment earnings arc recorded as earned, since they arc both mcasurable and available. 

Grant funds are considered Lo be earned to the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the grant. 
Accordingly. when such funds arc received, they are recorded as unearned revenues until related and authorized 
expenditures have been made. If balances have not been expended by the end or the project period, grantors sornetime-s 
require the District to refund all or part of the unused amount. 

The Fiduciary Funds are accounted for on a flow ofeconomic resources measurement focus and utilize the accrual basis 
of accounting. This basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned and 
become measurable and expenses in the accounting period in which they arc incurred and become measurable. The 
District applies nll GASB pronouncements as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued 
on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conllict or contradict GASB pronouncements. With this 
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds arc included on the rund 
Starcment of Net Position. Thc fund equity is segregated into invested in capitol assets net of related debt. restricted net 
position, and unrestricted net position. 

D. FUND ACCOUNTING 

The District reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - The general fund is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Debt Service Funds - The District accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for principal and 
interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds in a debt service fund. 

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund accounts for the bond proceeds and related construction and 
renovation projects of the District. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Additionally, the District repo1ts the following fund type(s): 

Governmental Funds: 

6 
I tt!d r.r ld.n lm ,·11 l!,I) 

L. Special Revenue Funds - The District accounts for resources restricted to, or designllted for, specifi c 
purposes by the District or a granter in a special revenue fund. Most federal and some State financial 
assistance is accounted for in a Special Revenue rund. llnd someti mes unused balances must be 
returned to the granter at the close of specified project periods. 

f iduciary f unds: 

1. Private Purpose Trust Funds • The District accounts for donations for which the donor has stipulated 
that both the principal ond the income may be used fol' purposes that benefit parties outside the District. 
The District's Private Purposr;; Trnst Fuml is the scholarship fund. 

2. Custodial Funds - The District accounts for resources held for others in a custodial capacity in 
custodial funds. The District's Custodial Fund is the Studr;;nl Activity Account. 

E. FUND BALANCE POLICY 

Frr;;dr;;ricksburg Independent School District reports fund balance for governmentlll funds in classifications based 
primarily on the extent to which the district is bound to honor constraints on the spccific purposes for which amounts in 
those funds can be spent. The nonspendablc classi fl cation represents assets that will be consumed or "must be 
maintained in tact" and therefor,;; will never convert to cash. such as inventories of supplies and endowments. Provisions 
of laws, contracts, and grants specify how fund resources can be used in the restricted classification. The nature of these 
two classifications precludes a need for a policy from the Roard or Trustees. However, the Board has adopted fund 
balance policies for the three unrestricted classifications• committed, assigned. and unassigned. 

From time lo time, the Board of Trustees may commit fund balancr;;s by a majority vote in a scheduled meeting. The 
Board's commitment may be modified or rescinded by a majority vote in a scheduled mr;;cting. Board commitments 
cannot exceed the amount of fund bl:llancr;; that is grcaier than the sum of nonspendableand restricted fund balances since 
that practice would commit funds that the district docs not have. Commitments may be for facili ry expansion or 
renovation, program modifications, wage and salary adjustments, financial cushions and other purposes determined by 
the Board. 

The Board of Trustees may delegate uuthority to specified persons or groups to make assignments of certain fund 
balances by a majority vote in a scheduled meeting. The Board may modify or rescind its delegation of alllhori ty by the 
same action. The authority to make assignments shall be in effect until modified or rescinded by the Board by majority 
vote in a scheduled meeting. 

When the District incurs expenditures that can be made from either restricted or unrestricted balances, the expenditures 
should be charged to restricted balances. When the District incurs expenditures that can be made from either com milled. 
assigned, or unassigned balancr;;s, the expenditures should be charged in !hat same order. 

Non-S 1ie ndablc: 
ln,,01UOr'y 

Pre-paid Items 
ltcs1dclccl fon 
School Nuiri1ion 
Debt &!rvicc 
Bond Cap itnl Projects 

Commillctl To; 
Cnmpus Activity l'und 
L.o<i!I C~pitol Projocts 

A.isignetJ 

Unnssigncd 

Totnl Fund Bnlnn•• 

Gonornl 
Funt! 

46.449 
114,068 

38,5 14 
12,107,906 

12,306,937 

School 
Nutrition 

Fund 

30,963 
415 

S tJ,225 

544,603 

Co11i111I 
P1'0jocts 

Fund 

451.491 

451,491 
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Debi 
Servi« 

Funt! 

1,728,928 

1,728,928 

loco I 
Cnpitnl 
Pr'Ojocts 

379.497 

379,497 

Other 
Funds 

266,6 t3 

Tornls 

77,4 12 
11 4,,183 

S 13,22S 

l.?28,928 
Hl,d91 

266,613 
379,497 

38.S 14 
12. 107,906 

266.613 15,678,069 



Jrredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

F. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLJClES 

I. For purposes or the statement of cash flows. the District considers highly liquid investments to be cash 
equivalents if they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased. See Section lll, Note A 
for more details. 

2. Temporary investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are valued 
at amortized cost because the lair value of the investments generally is not affected by the impairment of 
the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors. Investments are valued at fair value. 

3. The District reports inventories of General Fund supplies at cost including consumable paper and fuel. 
Supplies are recorded as expenditures when they are consu111ed. Inventories of School Nutrition food 
commodities arc recorded at market values supplied by the Texas Department of Agriculture. Although 
commoditie.~ are received at no cost, their fair market value is supplied by the Texas Depm1ment of 
Agriculture and recorded as commodity expenditures and commodity revenue when received. At year end. 
lhc inventory balance and unearned income/deferred revenue is recorded. 

4. Unearned revenue accounted for on the balance sheet of the genc111l fund relates to exctss funds re.ceived 
from the Texas Education Agency over earned amounts. 

5. The District provides risk management obligations by carrying appropriate insurance. Property and 
general liability insurance is obtained from a licensed insurer. Risk of loss is not retained by the 
District. 

6. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets ancl liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

7. In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable govemme11tal activities statement ofnet position. Material bond 
premiums and discounts are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term or the related 
debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuance costs during the 
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs, 
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received. arc reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

8. There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the District does not have a policy to pay 
any amounts when employees separate from service with the government. 

9. Capital assets, which include land, buildings, furniture and equipment nre reported in the applicable 
governmental columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capirnl assets are dd1ned by the 
District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in 
excess oftwo years. Such assets nre recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of 
donation. 

The costs or normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed. 

Buildings, furniture and equipment of the District is depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Asscl Type 
Building; 
lmprovcmcnls 
Bus~ 
Other Ychich:s 

Years 
JO 

5 to 30 
10 

5 lo 7 

Asscl Type 
01hcr Equipment 
Computer Equipment 
0111cc Equipmcnl 
Compulcr Sol1warc 

Years 
5 lo 7 

5 
s 
3 

10. In the fund financial statements. governmental funds report restricted and commilted fund balances 
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use 
for a specific purpose. 

11. The Data Control Codes refer to the account code structure prescribed by TEA in the Fl/lfmcia/ 
Acco1111tabilitySystem Resource G11ide. Texas Education Agency requires school districts to display 
these codes in the financial statements filed with the Agency in order 10 insure accuracy in building a 
Statewide data base for policy development and funding plans. 

L2. Pensions. The fiduciary net position of the Teacher Retirement System of' Texas (TRS) has been 
determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of 
accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net rcnsion liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions. pension expense, and infol'mntion 
about assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from TRS's fiduciary net position. Benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments arc reported at fair value. 

13. Other Post-Employment Benefits. The fiduciary net position of the Teacher Retirement System of Texas 
(TRS) TRS Care Plan has been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and 
full accrual basis of accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred 
outflows of resources and defe!'l'ed inflows of resources related to other post-employment benefits, OPEB 
expense, and infonnation about assets, liabilities and additions to/deductions from TRS Care's fiduciary 
net posilion. Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance wilh the benefit tenns. 
There are no investments as this is a pay-as-you-go plan and all cash is held in H cash account. 

14. In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report u separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of nel position that applies to future period(s) and so wil l not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District's deferred 
outflows or resources consist of deferred charges for pension contributions made after the 
measurement date or August 3 I. 2020 and during the District's current reporting period, differences 
between the expected and actual economic experience in the pension plan and changes in actuarial 
assumptions. 

15 . In addition to liabililies. the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement clement, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition or net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one type of item which 
arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. 
Uncollected property taxes which are assumed collectible are reported in this category on the balance 
sheet for governmental funds. They are not reported in this category on the government wide 
statement of net position. In the government wide llnancial statements, the District reports the deferred 
inflows for pension for the District's proportionate share of the deferred inflow for the difference 
between the projected and actual investment earnings in the pension plan. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

11. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNT ABILITY 

A. BUDGET ARY DAT A 

The Board of Trustees adopts an ''appropriated budget" for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund and the Food Service 
Fund which is included in Lhe Special Revenue Funds. The District is required Lo present the adopted and final amended 
budgeted revenues and expenditures for each of these funds. The District compares the final amended budget to actual 
revenues and expenditures. The General Fund Budget repo,'l appears i11 Exhibit 0-1 and the other two repo1·1s are in Exhibit 
J-2 and J-3 . 

The fo llowing procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic financial statements: 

I. Prior to June 20 the District prepares a budget for the next succeeding fiscal year beginning July I. The 
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing thelll. 

2. A meeting of the Board is lhcn called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget. Al least ten days' public 
notice of the meeting must be given. 

3. Prior to July I, tbe budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the Board. Once a budgcl is 
approved, it can only he amended at the fu11ctiot1 and fund level by approval of a majority of the members of 
the Board. Amendments are presented to the Board at its regular meetings. Each amendment must have Board 
approval. As required by law, such amendments arc made before the fact. arc reflected in the official minutes 
of the Board, and are not made al'le,· fiscal year end. Because the District has a policy of careful budgetary 
control, several amendments were m:cessary during the year. 

4. Each budget is controlled by the budget coordinator at the revenue and expenditure function/object level. 
Budgeted amounts are as amended by the Board. All budget appropriations lapse at year end. A reconciliation of 
fund balances for both appropriated budget and nonappropriated budget special revenue funds is as follows: 

June 30, 202 1 Fund B~lance 

Appropriated Bud~t Funds 
F'ood Service Sp.c/al Revenue Fund 

Nonappro1>ri~ted Buaget Funa 

All SJ)ccial Revenut Funds 

$ 544,603 
l M,613 

$ $11,216 

B. VARIANCES FROM FINAL ADOPTED BUDGET 

Budgets arc required to be adopted for the General Fund, the School Nutrition Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. Original and 
Finni Budgets are compared with the actual amounts at fiscal year-end. Variances with the tinal budget are noted. 

I. The General fund is analyzed in £xhibit G-1. All variances were positive. 
2. The School Nutrition Fund is analyzed in Exhibit J-2. All variances were positive. 
3. The Debt Service Fund is analy1,ed in Exhibit J-3. All variances were positive. 

IIJ, DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

District Policies and Legal Contractual Provision Governing Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk [pr Deposits State law requires governmental entities to contract wiLh financial institutions in which 
funds will be deposited lo secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securities with a fair value equaling or exceeding 
the amount on deposit at the end of each business day. The pledged securities must be in the name of the governmental entity 
and held by an agent. Since the Districl complies with this law, it has no custodial credit risk for deposits. 
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Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

At June 30. 2021, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $3,271,634 and the bank balance wos $3.409,857. 

Investments 

The District is required by the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code (PFIA), to adopt and 
implement an investment policy. That policy must address the following areas: safety of principal and liquidity. portfolio 
diversification, allowable investments, acceptable risk levels. e:-:pected rntes or return. maximum allowable stated maturity of 
portfolio investments, maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the staled maturity date for tht: portfolio. 
investments staff quality and capabi I ities, and bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit. Statues authorize the 
District to invest in obligations oft he U.S. Treasury. certain U.S. agencies and the State of Texas, certificates of deposit, certain 
municipal securities, and money market guaranteed investment contracts. The PFIA also requires the District to have 
independent auditors perform test procedures related to investment practices as prnvided by the PFIA. The District is in 
substantial compliance with the requirements or the PFIA and with local policies. 

The investment pools used by the District arc organized under the authority or the lntt:rlocal Cooperation Act. Chapter 791. 
Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code. The investment pools 
are public l'unds investment pools creuted to provide n safe environment for the plf1cement of local government funds in 
authorized short-term investments, In addition lo other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidi ty and safety of 
principal. the Act requires Pools to: 

I. Have an advisory board composed of participants irt the pool and other persons who do not have a business 
relationship with the pool ond are qualifled to advise the pool. 

2. Maintain a continuous rnting of no lower thun AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent rating by at least one 
nationally recognized rating service, and 

3. Maintain the market value of its underlying investment po1tfolio within one half of one percent of the value 
of its shares. 

For all funds, excluding Agency Y:unds, presented below is the percentage investe-d for each short term investment, the fair 
value as of June 30, 2021 (Exhibit C-1 ). lht: investment rating and the minimum rming required by the Act. 

Minimum 
Pcrcentagi; Fair Investment Legal 

Description Invested Value$ Rating Rating 
LOGIC Pool 18% $ 4,938,048 AAA AAA 
Texas Class Pool 28% 7,886,827 AAA AAA 
Lone Star Pool 54% 15 ,271 ,076 AAA AAA 
Totals 100% $28,095,951 

The Districfs investments in investment pools, which are exempt from regulation by the SEC. provides for the objectives for 
safety, flexibility. and competitive yields. Most of the pools have the objective of a net asset value of $1 .00 wherein the book 
value or the position in the pools is the same as thi; number of the shares in euch pool; tht: market value or a share should 
approximately equal the book value of a share. The District utilizes the pools described below. 

LOGIC (Local Government Investment Cooperative) is established in conformity with lhe Inter-local Cooperation Act, Chapter 
791 of the Texas Government Code. Logic funds allow shareholders the ability lo deposit or withdraw funds daily. Interest 
rates are adjusted daily, and the fund seeks to maintain a constant net asset value of $1 .00, although this cannot be guaranteed. 
Logic is rated AAAm and must maintain a weighted average matlirity not to exceed 60 days. The District considers the holdings 
in these funds to have a one-day weighted average maturity. This is due to the fact that the share positlon can usually be 
redeemed eoch day at the discretion of the shareholder. short of a significant change in value. On June 30, 2021. the avernge 
weighted maturity was 53 days and the net asset value was 1.00008 I. 

The Lonestar Investment Pool ("Lone Star") is a public funds investment pool created pursuant to the lnterlocal Cooperation 
Act. Texas Government Code. Chapter 79 1. and the Public Funds Investment Act, Texns Government Code. Chapter 2256. 
Lone Star is administered by First Public, a subsidiary of the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB), with American 
Beacon Advisors and Mellon Investments Corporation managing the investment and reinvestment on Lone Stai's assets. State 
Street Bank provides custody and valuation services to Lone Star. All oftht: board of trustees' eleven members are participants 
by wither being employees or elected offlcials of a participmlt. Lone Star has established an advisory board composed of both 
pool members and non.members. Lone Star is rated AAA by Standard and Poor's and seeks to maintain a net asset value of 
$1.00 and its dollar-weighted average maturity is 120 days or fewer. On June 30, 2021 , the average weighted maturity was 73 
days. 
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The Texas Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System Trust (Texas CLASS) is a Local Government Investment Pool 
established in conformity with the Inter-local Cooperntion Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code and the Public 
Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. Lone Star is administered by Public Trust Advisors, LLC 
and UMB Bank, N.A. pl'Ovides custody and valuation services to Texas CLASS. Texas CLASS is rated AM by Standard and 
Poor's and seeks to maintain u net asset value of $1.00 and its dollar-weighted average maturity is 120 days or fewer. On June 
30, 2021 , the average weighted maturity was 81 days. 

Policies Governing Deposits and Investments 

In compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, the District has adopted a deposit and investment policy. Thal policy 
does address the following risks: 

Cradit Risk: 
Gcnernlly, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment, 
This is measured by the assignment ofa rnting by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

Concentration of Credit l?isk.' 
The District places nu limit un the nmount it may invest in any one issuer: rather, investments al'e govemed by the objectives 
of preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, and yield. 

Interest Rate Ri.1·k: 
Generally, inte1·est rate l'isk recognizes that changes in interest rates could adversely affect the value of investments. The 
District docs not purchase any investments with mnlurities greater than one year from the time of purchase. The Board may 
specifically authorize a longer maturity for a given investment within the legal limits of five (S) yeilrs. Tile District uses its 
investments in the investment pools to mitigate inte1·est rnte risk. 

B. PROPERTY TAXES 

Property laxes arc levied by October I on the assessed value listed as of the prior· January 1 for all real and business 
personal property located in the District in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on 
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February I of the year following the year in which imposed. 
On January 31 of each year, a tax lien altaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest 
ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available (I) when they become due or past due and receivable 
within the current period and (2) when they are expected to be collected during a 60-day period after the close of the school 
fi seal year. 

C. DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE 

Delinquent taxes are prorated between niainNnance and debt service based on rates adopted for the year of the levy. 
Allowances for uncollcctiblc tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are based on historical 
experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property ta'(es arc periodically reviewed and wrillen off. 
but the District is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas 
Legislature. 

D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

The District participates in a variety of federal and state programs from which it receives grants to pa11ially or fully fund 
ce11ain activities. The District also receives entitlements from the State through the School Foundation and Per Capita 
Programs. During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for good provided or 
services rendered. These receivable5 and payables are classified as "due ftom other funds'' or ··due to other funds." The 
composition of interfund balances (Exhibit C• I) as of June 30, 2021 is as follows: 

Due from Duclo 
Fund Other Funds Olhcr Funds 

General Fund s 2.685,353 s 124,454 
Capital Projects Fund 36.892 
Special Revenue Fund 2.597.791 

TOTAL s 2.722.245 s 2,722,245 
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E. DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLES AND PAY ABLES 

Receivables at June 30, 2021 wel'e as follows: 
l'ropcr1y Olhl!f Tmal 

Tn,'11,:S Govermnen1s Other Receivabli:s 

Go1unmental Activities: 

Ge11erill Fund 1,810,283 s 2,024,995 s 66.503 $ 3,901,781 
Debt Servke Fund 173,669 9,843 183,512 

Cap ital l'rojccts Hmd 
Nonma_ior Govcrnmcnial Funds 2,637,JS0 193 2,637,543 

Total Goventme11ioJ Activities $ 1,983,952 $ 4,672.188 $ 66,696 $ 6,m ,836 

Amounts not scheduled for ~'Ollcction 
during the subsequent yeur $ 99,197 s s $ 99,197 

Payables at June 30, 2021 wen: as follows; 
Salaries Due to 

Accourtis and Pue to Other Toial 
Pal able Benefits Other Funds Governments Payables 

Governmental Ac! ivil les. 
General Fund $ 165,370 $ 2,825,963 $ 124.4$4 $ t6,531,178 s t9,646,965 
Debt Service Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
NomnnJor Governmental Funds 2,913 381 ,110 2,597,791 28,407 3,0t0,221 

Total Oovemmcntal Activiti~s $ 168,283 $ 3,207,073 $ 2,722,245 $ 16,559,585 $ 22,657,186 

Ai11ounts no! scheduled for p~ymcnl 
during the subsequent year s $ $ s s 
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F. CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY 

Capital asset activity (Exhibit A- 1) for the District for the year ended June 30. 2021 was as follows: 

(iov~rnm~mol /\ctlvilics· 
No,H.l~ Jl'CCinbl~ A69l."t8. 
Lli!HI 
Con9truc1k1tt h1 rro~;l'13'9.B 

Dcprc..-ci.tbh.o, t\SSdS. 
Buildin~ & lmprO\·t?nu.;nts: 
Furniture? & Equipment 

Tal;ils at Mistoric: Cosl 
Li!1i$: Accumuli1tcd 

Dcpr1..~intion For: 
BnUdlnB'i & lmprovcmcms 
r-urnitun: & &)ulpincm 

•rmnl A~c11mulnr(:(i rlcp rccintion 

QovCfn1n,."lH8I 1\ctlvilics 
Capital AHct;, N~t 

A&sot Vnluc 
I.Jepr-x:ifnlon 
Asset•, 11ct valtio (E:,hiblt A-I ) 

s 

s 

$ 

$ 

Bcga'nning 
Bnlnncc 

1.JOfJ,81 1 
lS,o•~ 

72,603,4,8 
11,838,402 
85,773,739 

l l 4, 712,968) 
(9,708,629) 

(44,43 1,597) 

4 1,Hl.Hl 

9oildin~ 
13,536, 128 

(l?.233,377) 
J<,.,;c,)~_7$ 1 

$ 

$ 

s 

$ 

Additions 

7.344,016 s 
~1,645 

0:.il,6Pll 
218,323 

8,517,674 

(2,5 10,409) 
(693,761) 

(3,204,170) 

$,:; 1:i.su-1 $ 

fiumitur'-! & 

E9ul~mr:nt 
11 ,823,500 

~10,1'l2,525) 
1,600,975 

s 

tl3)1~l5 I 
(lJ~,225 ) 

179,865 
179,865 

jSJ,.l60) S 

Ending 
Bnlonc.e 

8,650,833 
,11.121 

7.l ,536, l'.!8 
11,823,500 
94,058, 188 

(37,lJ3,J77) 
( I 0.lll.$lS) 
(4 7,4SS,902) 

•16 ,60:2,286 

Depreciation expense totaling $3.204,170 wus charged to governmental functions as follows: 

Funclion 
Instruction 

lnMruciional Re~ourccs 
Curriculum 
lnstructiotinl Leudcrship 
School L1msdcrship 
Guidance, Counseling & Evaluation 
Social Work Services 
Heallh Services 

~ BONDS PAYABLE 

1,755,490 
24,968 
7,229 

62.614 
169,630 
146,252 

12.0S? 
46,766 

Fu11cliort 

Student (Pupil) Transpo11ation 

School Nutrition 
Co-curricular/fatrncurriculnr Acl ivit ics 
General Administration 
Plant M nintcnnncc & Operations 
Security 
Pat H Prilcc~s ing 

Cornmunity Services 

Amount 
86,249 

127,391 
148,789 
122,555 
327,428 

10,593 
109,760 
46,399 

Bonded indebtedness of the District is reflected in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A-1) in the government-wide financial 
statements. Current year pnymenls for principal and interest expenditures are accounted for in the Debt Service Fund in the Statement 
of' Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (Exhibit C-3) in the fond financial statements. A summary of changes in 
general long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 202 I is as follows: 

l111crest Amounts lnlcrcst AmouolS All10U111S 
Rote Originol Currenl Ou1s1anding Outstanding 

Description Povablc Issue Year 11112920 Issued Relircd 6/30/2021 

School T~x Bonds• 2015 1.05-6,8% $ 7,500,000 s I t0,739 $ 4,530,000 s s 250,000 s 4,280,000 
School Tax Bonds - 2016 1.81¾ $ 9,000,000 110,410 6,100,000 400,000 S,700,000 
School Tax Bonds - 2018 2.81 % S 9,300,000 155.243 5,530,000 1,880,000 3,650,000 
Refunding Bond• 2019 1,80% S 6,135,000 87,210 4,845,000 I ,s 101000 313] 51000 

s 463,602 s 21,005,000 S . s 4,040,000 $ 16,965,000 
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Debi service requirements arc as follows: 
Ycitr Ended 

June 30 Princieal 
2022 s 2,720,000 S 
2023 2.745.000 
2024 1,990,000 
2025 I ,26S,OOO 
2026 1.m.000 

2027-2031 6,950,000 

ln1eres1 
372.504 
308,607 
243,886 
200,334 
176,657 
m .776 

Tolal 
Re911ircnie111s 

J ,092,504 
3,053,607 
2,233,886 
1.465,334 
1,471,657 
7,378,776 

s 16,965,000 s 1,730.764 === ..... -- $ ---==18=,6=95=·',,,6-4 

There are a number or lirnitations and rest!'ictions contained in the general obligation bond indenture. Management has 
indicated that the District is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions at June 30, 202 l. 

H. CHANGES IN LONG-TERMLIABILITIES 

Long-term Governmental activ ity for bonds and notes payable for the year ended June 30, 2021 , was as follows (Exhibit 
A- 1): 

Amounts 

Beginning Ending Due Within 

Boloncc Increases Dc, renscs Onl.mcc ()nc Yl51r 

Goval'l1mamal ac1lvilies: 

General Oblig111io11 Bonds s 2 1.00~.ooo s 4 ,040,000 s 16,965,000 s 2,720.000 

Nc1 Pension Linbility 7,974.4~2 976,443 640,240 8 ,3 10 ,6<1S 

Net OPEB Liability 12,088,618 (2,528,602) 187,398 9,372,6 18 

Total Long•Tcrm l.iabilitics 4 1,068,060 $ (1 ,552, I 59) $ •1,867,638 s 34,648.263 s 2.120,000 

I. ACCUMULATED UNPAID VACATION AND SICK LEAVE BENEFITS 

In accordance with GASB 16. Accounting for Compensated Absences, sick leave and other compensated absences with 
similar characteristics should be accrued as a liability as the benefits arc earned by the employees but only to the extent ii 
is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through cash payments conditioned on the 
employees· termination or n:tin::mcnl. 

The District's policy for vacation/non-duty days does nol allow for accumulation. All available days must be used or lost 
yearly. Individuals may accumulate and carry over local sick leave up 10 sixty days. Any accumulation over sixty days 
is paid to the individual by June 30 at the end of the year. Upon leaving the employment of the district for any reason, 
local sick days remaining are lost except in certain circumstances. If an employee 1·ctires or resigns in good standing and 
provides ample notice. they will be paid by the end of June an amount equal to half of a sub pay rate for the number of 
unused local sick leave days that .ire equal to the number of unused state days up to a ma-.:imum of sixty days. State 
personal days carry forward indefinitely with the district and move as 1wailable days with an employee to other districts 
as required by State law. Payment is not made or required to be made for unused state days. Accordingly. no liability 
was incurred or recorded for 11ny days. 

J. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Pim, Description. rredericksburg Independent School District participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension that has a special funding situation. The plan is administered by the Teacher Retirement System of Texas 
(TRS). TRS 's defined benefit pension plan is established and administered in accordance with the Texas Constitution, 
Article XVI, Section 67 and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. The pension trnst fund is a qualified pension 
trust under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Texas Legislature establishes benefi ts and contribution 
roles within the guidelines of the Texas Constitutio11. The pension's Board of Trustees does not have the authority to 
establish or an1end benefit terms. 
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I rr.r.l1:1il":knlJ111·1t 1r.,1J 

All employees of public. state-supported educational institutions in Texas who arc employed for one-half or more of the 
standard work load and who are not exempted from membership under Texas Government Code. Titlo 8. Section 822.002 
are covered by the system. 

Pe11s/cm Plan Fid11cit1ry Net Pos/tlou. Detailed inforniation about the Teacher Retirement System·s fiduciary net position 
is availuble in II separately-issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements and 1·equired 
supplementary information. That repo1t may be obtained on the Internet at 
https://www.trs.texas.gov/Pnges/about_publications.aspx. by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River Street. Austin, TX, 
78701-2698. 

Be11efitl· Provided. TRS provides service and disability retirement. as well as death and survivor benefi ts. to eligible 
employee~ (and their beneficiaries) of public and higher education in Texas. The pension formula is calculated using 2.3 
percent (multipller) times the average oft he five highest ilnnual creditable salaries times yea1·s of credited service to arrive 
at the annual standard annuity except for members who arc grandfathered, the three highest annual salaries are used. The 
normal service retirement is at age 65 with S years of credited service or when the sum of the member's age and years of 
credited service equals 80 or more years. Early retirement is at age 55 with 5 years of service credit or earlier than 55 with 
30 years of service credit. There are additional provisions for early retirement if the sum of the member' s age and years 
of service-credit total at least 80, but the member is less than age 60 or 62 depending on date of employment, or if the 
member was grandfathered in under a previous rule. There arc no automatic post-employment bcrtelit changes; including 
automatic COLAs. Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes, including ad hoc COLAs can be granted by the Texas 
Legislature ns noted in the Plan description above. 

Texas Government Code Section 821.006 prohibits bene.fit improvements, if, as a result of the particulai· action. the time 
required to amortize TRS' unfunded actuarial liabil ities would be increased to a period that exceeds 31 years. or. if the 
amortization period already exceeds 31 years, the period would be increased by such action. 

In May 2019, the 86111 Tcxus legislature approved the TRS Pension Rclorrn Bill (S812) lhat provides for gradunl 
contribution increase-s from the state, participating employe1·s and act ive employees to make the pension fund actuarially 
sound. This action causing the pension fund to be actuarially sound, allowed the legislature to approve funding for a I 31h 

check in September 2019. All eligible members retired as of December 31, 2018 received an extra annuity check in either 
the matching amount of their annuity payment or $2,000, whichever is less. 

Co11trlhutlo11s. Contribution requirements a1·e established or amended pursuant to Article 16, section 67 of the Texas 
Constitution which requires the Texas legislature to establish a member contribution rate of not less than 6% of the 
member's annual compensation and a state contribution rate of not less than 6% and not more than I 0% of the aggrcgutc 
annual compensation paid to members of the system dul'ing the fiscal year. 

Employee contribution rates are set in state statute, Texas Government Code 825.402. The TRS Pension Reform Bill 
(Senate Bill 12) of the 86111 Legislature amended Texas Government Code 825.402 for member contributions and increased 
employee and employer conlribution rates for fiscal years 2020 thru 2025. 

Member 
Non,Employcr Contributing Entity {State) 
Employers 

Contribution Rntes 
~ 
7.7% 
7.5% 
7.5% 

Frederieksburg ISD - Current Fiscal Year Employer Contributions 
flredcricl1sburg ISD- Current l~iscal Yenr Member Contributions 
Fredericksburg ISD -2020 Mc~s11rcmcnt \'car NtCE On-bchalfContrib11tions 

!!Ill 
7.7% 
7.5% 
7.5% 

S 685,789 
S l,760,634 
$ l ,358,266 

Contributors to the plan include members, employers and the Stale of Texas as the only non-employer contributi1,g entity. 
The State is the employer for senior colleges, medical schools and state agencies including TRS. In each respective role. 
the State contributes to the plan in accordance with state stntutes and the General Appl'Optiations Act (GAA). 

As the non-employer contributing entity for public education, the State of Texas contl'ibutes to the retirement system an 
amount equal to the current employer contribution rate times the aggregate annual compensation of all participating 
members of the pension trust fund during that fiscal year reduced by the an1ounts described below which are paid by the 
employers. Employers including public schools are required to pay the employer contribution rnte in the fo llowing 
instances: 

• On the portion of the member's sala1-y that exceeds the statutory minimum for members entitled to the 
statutory minimum under Section 21.402 of tht: Texas Education Code. 

• During a new member's first 90 days of employment. 
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• When any part 0 1· all of an employee's salary is paid by fedenil funding sources, a privately sponsored 
source, from non-educational and general, or local funds. 

• When the employing district is a public junior college or junior college district, the employer shall 
contribute to the retirement system an amount equal lo 50 percent of the state contribution rate for certain 
instructional or administrative employees and 100 percent of the state contribution rate for all othi;:r 
employees. 

In addition to the employer contributions listed above, there arc two additional surcharges an employer is subject to. 
• All public schools. charter schools, and regional educational service centers must contribute 1.5 percent of 

the member's salary beginning in fiscal year 2020, grndually increasing to 2 percent in fiscal year 2025. 
• When employing a retiree of the Teacher Retirement System, the employer shall pay both the member 

contribution and the state contribution as an employment after retirement surcharge. 
Actuarial A$.~11111ptiom. The total pension liability in the August 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions; 

Valuation Date 

Actual'ial Cost Method 
Asset Valuation Method 
Single Discount Rate 
Long-term expected Investment Rate of Return 
Municipal Bond Rate es of August 2019 

Last year ending August 3 I in 
Projection Pel'iod ( I 00 Years) 
Inflation 
Salary Increases 
Ad hoc Post Ernployment Benefit Changes 

August 31, 2019 rolled forward to 
August 31 2020 
Individual Entry Age Normal 
Market Value 
7.25% 
7.25% 
2.33%. Source for the rate is the Fixed 
Income Market Data/Yield Curve/Data 
Municipal Bonds with 20 years to maturity 
that include only federal tax-exempt 
municipal bonds as reported in Fidelity 
Index's "20-Year Municipal GO AA Index.'' 

2119 
2.30% 
3.05% to 9.05% including inflation 
None 

The actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the total pension liability are the same assumptions used in the 
act1.1arial valuation as of August 31, 2019. 

Discou11t Rme. A single discount rnte of7.25 percent was used to measure the total pension liability. The single discount 
rate was based on the expected rate of return on plan investments of 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine this single discount rate assumed that contributions from active members, employers and the non-employer 
contributing entity will be made at the rates set by the Legislature during the 2019 legislative session. It is assumed thnt 
future employer and state contributions will be 8.50 percent or payroll in fiscal year 2020 gradually increasing to 9.55 
percent of payroll over the next several years. This includes all employer and State contributions for active and rehired 
retirees. 

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make nil future 
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7 .25 percent. The long-term expected rate of return 
on plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real 
rntes of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major 
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation, Best estimates of geometric 
real rates of return for each major class included in the System's target asset allocation as or August 31, 2020 are 
summarized below: 
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Target 

Asset Class Al I oca ti on 111 

U.S. 

Non-U.s. Deve l oped 

Emerging Markets 

Private Equity 

stable value 

Government Bonds 

Stable Value Hedge Funds 

Real Return 

Real Estate 

Energya nd Natural Resources 

Risk Parity 

Risk Parity 

leverage 

Cash 

Asset Al I oca ti on Leverage 

Inflation Expectation 

Volatility Drag111 

18.00% 

13.00% 

9.00% 

14.00% 

16.00% 

S.00% 

15.00% 

6.00% 

8.00% 

2.00% 

· 6.00% 

Total 100% 
111 Targe t allocati ons are based on the FY2020 policy model. 

Long-Term 

Expected Arithmetic 

Real Rate 

of Return 121 

3 .90% 

5.10% 

5.60% 

6.70% 

-0.70% 

1.90% 

4.60% 

6.00% 

3.00% 

-1.50% 

· 1.30% 

121 Ca pita I Market Assumptions come from Aon Hewitt (as of 8/31/2020) 

Expected Contribution 

to Long-Term 

Porfolio 

Returns 

0.99% 

0.92% 

0.83% 

1.41% 

-0.05% 

0.11% 

1.01% 

0.42% 

0.30% 

-0.03% 

0.08% 

2.00% 

-0.67% 

7.33% 

131 The vo latlllty drag results from the conversion between artithmetic and geometric mean re turns. 

Di.ycount Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The following schedule shows the impact of the Net Pension Liability if the 
discount rate used was I% less than and I% greater than the discount rate that was used (7.25%) in measuring the 

Net Pension Liabi lity. 

1% Increase in Discount I% Increase in 

Discount Rate Rate Diseounl Role 

(6.25%) (7.25%) (8 .25%) 

Fredericks burg's proportionate share of the net 

pension liability : $ 12,814,866 $ 8,31.0,645 $ 4,65 1,064 

Pe11slo11 Llrtblfltles, Pens/011 Expe11se, a11d Deferred O11tj10111s of Resources and Deferred l11flo111s of Resources Relater/ 
to Pe11sio11s. At June 30, 2021 , the Fredericksburg Independent School District reported a liability of $8,3 10,645 for its 
proportionate share of the TRS's net pension liability. This liability reflects II reduction for State pension support provided 
to the Fredericksburg Independent School District. The amount recogni:zed by the Fredericksburg Independent School 
District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total po1'lion of the net 
pension liability that was associated with the Fredericksburg Independent School District were as follows: 

District's Proportionate share of the collective net pension liability 
State's propo11ionate share that is associated with the District 
Total 
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The net pension liability wns measured as of August 31 , 2019 and rolled forward to August 31 , 2020 and the total pension 
liability used lo calculate the net pension liability was determined by nn actuarial valuation as of that date. The employer's 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the employer's contributions to the plan relative to the contributions 
of all employers to the plan for the ptriod September I, 2019 thru August 31, 2020. 

At August 31 , 2020 the employer's proportion of the collective net pension liability was .0[55171052% which is an 
increase of .0001766620% from its proportion measured as of August 31 , 2019. 

Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation -There were no changes in assumption since the priOI' mea~urement date. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 , the Fredericksburg Independent School District recogni1.ed pension expense of 
$3,260,762 and revenue of $2,120,620 for support provided by the State. 

At June 30, 2021, the Fredericksburg independent School District reported its propo1tionate share of the TRS's defmed 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related lo pensions from the following sources: 

D\?ferred Deferred 

Outflows of loflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and uc1uol octunrinl experiences $ tS,175 $ 231 ,928 

Changes in actuarial assumptions 1,928,365 819,927 
Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 168,242 . 
Changes in proportion and diflerence between the employer's contributions 
nnd the proportionate share of contributions 296,542 455,868 

Totol as of Aue,usl 31, 2020 meosuremcnt dote $ 2,408,324 $ 1,507,723 

Con1ribu1ions pnid 10 TRS subsequent to the mensuremcnl dnte 584,915 . 
Total as of fiscal year-end $ 2,993,239 $ 1,507,723 

The net amounts of the employer's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related 10 pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 
2022 $ 
2023 

2024 
2025 
2026 

Thereafter 

Pension 

Expense 
Amount 

264,997 
354,672 
309,060 
56,013 

(85,891) 
1,750 

K DEFINED OTHER POST~EMPLOYl\llENT BENEFIT PLAN 

Pim, Descriptio11. The Fredericksburg Independent School District participates in the Texas Public School Retired 
Employees Group Insurance Program (TRS-Care). ll is a multiple-employer, cost-sharing defined Other Post­
Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan that has a special funding situation. The TRS-Carc program was established in 1986 
by the Texas Legislature. 

The TRS Board of Tntstees administerS the TRS-Care program and the related fund in accordance with Texas Insw-ance 
Code Chapter 1575. The Board of Trustees is granted the authority t establish basic and optional group insurance coverage 
for participants as well as to amend benefit terms as needed under Chapter 1575.052. the abord may adopt rules, plans, 
procedures, and orders reasonably necessary to administer the program, including minimum benefits and financing standards. 

OPEB Pla11 Fiduciary Net Position. Detail information about the TRS-Cnre's fiduciary net position is available in the 
separntely"issued TRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at: 
https://www.trs.texas.gov/Pages/about_publications.aspx; by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River Street, Austin, TX, 

78701-2698; or by calling (512) 542-6592. 
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Benefits Provided. TRS-Carc provides hcalih insurance coverage to retirees from public school district who arc members 
of the TRS pension plan. Optional dependent coverage is available for an additional fee. 

Eligible non-Medicare retirees and their dependents not emvlled in TRS-Ca.re Standard, a high-deductible health plan. 
Eligible Medicare retirees and their dependents may enroll in the TRS-Cnre Medicare Advantage medical plan and the 
TRS-Care Medicare Rx prescription drug plan. To qualify for TRS-Care coverage, a retiree must have at kast 10 years 
of service credit in the TRS pension system. There nre no automatic post-employment benefit changes; including 
nutomntic COLAs. 

The premium rates for retirees are ret1ected in the following table. 

Retiree* 
Reti1·ee and Spouse 
Retiree* and Children 
Retiree and Family 

•oi- surviving spouse 

TRS- Care Monthlv for Retirees 
Medicare 

$ 135 $ 

529 
468 

I 020 

Non- Medicare 
200 
689 
408 
999 

Co11trib11tions. Contribution rates for the TRS-Care plan are established in state statute by the Texas Legislature, and 
there is no continuing obligation to provide benefits beyond each fiscal year. The TRS-Care plan is currently funded on 
a pay-as-you-go basis and is subject to change based on available funding. Funding for TRS-Care is provided by retiree 
premium contributions and contributions from the state, active employees, and school districts based upon public school 
district payroll. The TRS Board of trustees does not have the authority to set. or amend contribution rates. 

Texas Jnsurnnce Code, section 1575.202 establishes the state's contribution rate which is 1.25% of the employee's salary. 
Section 1575.203 establishes the active employee's rate which is .75% of pay. Section 1575.204 establishes an employer 
contribution rate of not less than 0.25 percent or not more than 0. 75 percent of the salary of each active employee of the 
public. The actual employer contribution rate is prescribed by the Legislature in the General Appropriations Act. The 
following table shows contributions lo the TRS-Care plan by type of contributor. 

Active Employee 
Non-Employer Contributing Entity (St.ate) 
Employers 

Contribution Rates 

l<'ederal/privnte Funding remitted by Employers 

Fredericksburg ISD- Current Fiscal Year Employer Contributions 
Fredericksburg ISD- Current Fiscal Year Member Contributions 
Fredericksburg ISD- 2020 Measurement Year NECE On-behalf 
Contributions 

2020 
0.65% 
1.25% 
0.75% 
J.25% 

$1.93,579 
$148,639 
$251,814 

2021 
0.65% 
l.25% 
0.75% 
1.25% 

In addition to the employer contributions listed Etbove. there is an additional su1·charge all TRS employers are subject to 
(regardless of whether or not they participate in the TRS Care OPEB program). When hiring a TRS retiree, employers arc 
required to pay TRS Care, a monthly surcharge of $535 per retiree. 

TRS-Care received supplemental appropriations from the State of Texas as the Non-Employer Contributing Entity in the 
amount of$230.8 million in fiscal year 2020 to mailllain premiums and benefit levels in the 2020-2021 biennium. 

Actuarial As,fumptio11s. The actuarial valuation was performed as of August 31 , 2019. Update procedure were used to 
roll forward the Totnl OPBB Liability to August 31, 2020. The actuarial valuation was determined using the fo llowing 
actuarial assumptions: 

The actuarial valuation of the OPEB plan offered through TRS-Carc is similar to the actunrial valuation performed for 
the pension plan, except that the OPEB valuation is more complex. Al l the demographic assumptions, including rates of 
retirement, termination, and disability. and most of lhe economic assumptions. including general inflation and salary 
incre.ised, used in the OPEB valuation were identical to those used in the respective TRS pension valuation. The 
demographic assumptions were developed in the experience study performed for TRS for the period ending August 31, 
20 17. 
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The fo llowing assumptions and other inputs used for members oflRS-Care are based on the established pattern of practice 
nnd are identical lo the assumptions used in the Aug_usl 3 I. 2019 TRS pension actuarial valuat·ion that was rolled Jorward 
to August 31 , 2020: 

Rates of Mortal ity 
Rates of Retirement 
Rates of Termination 
Rates of Disability Incidence 

General Inflation 
Wage lntlation 
Expected Payroll Growth 

The active mortality rates were based on 90 percent or the RP-20 14 Employee Mortality Tables for males and females, 
with full generational mortality using Scale BB. The post-retirement mortality rates for healthy live-s we,·e based on the 
20 18 TRS orTexos Healthy Pensioner Mortality Tables. with full generational projection using the ultimate improvement 
rates from the most recently published scale (U-MP). 

Additio1111/ Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: 
Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Inflation 
Single Discount Rate 
Aging Factors 
Election Rates 

Expenses 

Salary Increases 
Ad hoc post-employment benefit changes 

August 31, 20 I 9 1-olled forwnrd to August 31, 2020 
Individual Entry Age Normal 
2.30% 
2.33% as of August 31. 2020 
Based on plan specific experience 
Normal Retirement: 65% participation prior to age 
65 and 5011/0 after nge 65. 25% of pre-65 retirees are 
assumed to discontinue coverage at 65, 
Third-party administrative expenses related to the 
delivery of' health care benefits are included in lhe 
age-adjusted claims cost. 
3.05% to 9.05%, including inflation 
None 

Discm111t R111e. A single discount rate of2.33 percent was used to measure the total OP8B liability, This was a decrease 
of0.30 percent in the discount rate since the previous year. Because the plan is pay-as-you-go plan, the single discount 
rate is equal to the prevailing municipal bond rate. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from active members and those of the contributing employers and the non-employer 
contributing entity arc made al the slatutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to not be able to make all future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the 
municipal bond rate was npplied 10 all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

The source of the municipal bond rate is the Fideliiy .. 20-year Municipal GO AA Index .. as of August 31 . 2020 using the 
fixed-income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds. 

Discount R:ite Sensitivity Analysis The following schedule shows the impact ofthc Net OPEB Liability iflhc discount 
rate used was I% less than and 1 % greater than the discount rate that was used (2.63%) in measuring the Net OPEB 
Liability, 

I% Decrease in Discount Roti: Current Single Discount Ruic 1% lncr~asc in Discount Rme 
( 1.33%) (2.33%) (3.63%) 

Fredericksburg ISD's 
proportionate share of the Net $ 11 ,247,120 $ 9,372,618 $ 7,892,oJ0 
OPEB Liability: 

llealrhcare Cost Trelill R"tes Sensitivity A;l{f/ysls. The following present the net OPEB liabi lity or the plan using the 
assumed healthcare cost trend rate, as wel l as what the net OPEB liability would be ifit were calculated using a trend rate 
that is one-percentage point lower or one-percentage point higher than the assumed healthcare cost trend rate. 

1% Decrease Current Hen!lhcurc Cost 1% Increase 
Trend Rate 

frederi~ksburg ISD"s proportionate shore 
$ 7.656.228 $ 9.372,618 $ 11 ,658,606 

of the Net OPEB Liability: 
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OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, am/ Deferretl O11tj10111s of Reso11rces am/ Deferretl /11j1,;,i;s of Reso11rces Re/(lfed to 
OPEBs. /\t June 30, 2021 , the Fredericksburg Independent School District reported a liability of $9,372,618 for its 
proportionate share of the TRS's Net OPEB Liability. This liability rellects a reduction for Staie OPEB support provided 
to the Fredericksburg Independent School District. The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability, the related State support. and the total portion of the net OPEB liabil ity that was associated with 
the Fredericksburg Independent School District wc;rr.: as follows: 

Fredericksburg ISD's Proportionate share of the collective Net OPEB Liability $ 9,372,618 
State's proportionate share that is associated with Fredericksburg ISO $ 12594.55 1 
Total Pl 967 169 

The Net OPEB Lia hi lity was measured as of August 3 I, 2019 and rolled forward to August 31 , 2020 and the Total OPEB 
Liability used to calculate the Net OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The employer's 
proportion of the Net OPEB Liability was based on the employer's contributions lo the OPEB plan relative to the 
contributions of all employers to the plan for the period September I, 20 I 9 thru August 31 , 2020. 

At August 31 , 2020 the employer's proportion of the collective Net OPEB Liability was 0.0246553649%. which was a 
decrease of (0.0009067137%) from its proportion measu1·ed as of August 31 , 2019. 

Changes Since the Prior Actuarial Valuation - The following were changes to the actuarial assumptions or other inputs 
that affected measurement of the Total OPEB liability since the prior mensuremenl period: 

• The discount rate changed from 2.63 percent as of August 31, 20 19 19 2.33 percent as of August 31 , 2020. This 
change increased the Total OPEB Liability. 

• The participation rate for post-65 retirees was lowered from 50 percent to 40 percent. This changed lowr.:rcd the 
Total OPEB Liability. 

• The ullimnte henllh cure trend rate nssumplion ~vas lowered from 4.50 percent to 4.25 percent ns a result of 
Congress' repeal of the excise (Cadillac) tax on high-cost employer health plans in December 2019. This change 
lowered the Total OPEB Liability. 

• There were no changes in btmefit terms since the prior measurement date. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 , the Fredericksburg Independent School District recognized OPEB expense of 
$(404,751) and revenue of$(87,452) for support provided by the State, 

At June 30, 2021, the F1·edericksburg Independent School District repo1·ted its proportionate share of the TRS's deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows o[ resources related 10 other post-employment b1inel1ts from the following 
sources: 

Deferred Outnows of Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected nnd actual actua.ria.l experience $ 490,747 $ 4,289,389 

Chiinsi:s in ~ctun~iru ussumptions 578,096 2.573,769 

Difference betw,-en pt'ojecied and octual investment eaniings 3,046 . 
Changes in proportion and diffore11ce between the employer's contributiotiS and the 

29 1,141.867 
proporlioniltc share of contributions 

Total ns of August 31, 20 19 measurement dulc $ 1,071 ,918 $ 8,005,025 

Co11tribu1io11s paid 10 T RS subsequent to the measurement date 162,889 . 
Total $ 1,234,807 $ 8,005,025 

The net amounts of the employer's balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

OPEB Expense 

Fiscal year ended June Amount 
2022 $ (1,119,948) 

2023 $ (1,120,355) 

2024 s (1,120,588) 

202S $ (1,120,S"l7) 

2026 s (870,183) 

Thereafter s (1,581,506) 
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L. MEDICARE PART D - ON BEHALF PAYMENTS 

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, which was effective January I. 2006, 
established prescription drug coverage for Medicare beneficiaries known as Medicare Part D. One of the provisions of 
Medi cure Part D allows for the Texas Public School Retired Employee Group Insurance Program (TRS-Care) to receive 
drug subsidy payments from the federal government to offset certain prescription drug expenditures for eligible TRS­
Care participants. Payments made on behalf to f-redericksburg Independent School District for Ii seal years 2019, 2020, and 
202 1 were $83,93 1. $ 108,214. and $ I 02,345 respectively. 

M. LITIGATION 

The District is occasionally involved in various legal actions. Attorneys for the District indicate there is none 
as of June 30, 202 1. 

N. CONTINGENCIES 

The District participates in numerous Stale and Federal grant programs which nre governed by various rules and 
regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment 
by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that tl1e District has not complied with the rules and regulations governing 
the grants. if any, re funds of any money received may be required and the collectability of any related receivable at June 
30, 202 1 may be impaired. In the opinion of the District, there were no significant contingent liabili ties relating to 
compliance with rules and regulations governing the respective grants, therefore, no provisiO!l has been recorded it1 the 
accompanying combined financial statements for such contingencies. 

0, GENERAL FUND FEDERAL SOURCE llEVENUES 

Federally financed programs are generally accounted for in the Special Revenue Funds of the District. except for SHARS, 
JROTC salary reimbursi;ments and indirect costs charged to federal programs which are accounted for in the General 
Fund as prescribed by the TEA. The District recognized in the General Fund such revenues for the year ended June 30, 
2021. from various federal sources as fo llows: 
Program or Source 
SHARS 
Navy-JROTC Program 
E-Rote R.cimburscmcms 
Indirect Costs: 

ESEA Title I, Part A 
ESEA Title II, Part A 
ESSA Title Ill, Part A, ELA 
IDEA - Port 13, Formula 
Title IV, Part A, Subpart I 
Food Service Fund 
Career and Technical 
ESSER 

Total 

Amount 
$ 467,039 

62,246 
59,53'.i 

27,7 16 

2,365 
1,95 1 

28,748 
2,046 

138,77 1 
2,840 

19,612 
812,866 

Indirect cost revenues were determined by applying approved indirect costs rates to allowable applicable expenditures 
of federally funded grant progra111s. 
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P. UNEARNED/UNA VAfLABLE REVENUE 
Unearned and unav11ilnble revenue (Exhibits C-1 and H-1 ) nl yi::ilr-1.:nd consisted o f the following: 

Special Ocbt 
{icm:rnl Revenue Service 

r~md F11nd F\md 
lJ11;ivnil.1hlL..., s s s s 
l'ropcr1y Tn.w~ 1,719,769 164,986 

Unc;:1m cd-

School Nutrili()n 43,49 1 

SliiJt<! Prc,grrun RcYL"llllCS 4,707 

Tuition 
D.1y c;u-e Revenue~ 9,4JS 

Tmal s 1,729,Z04 s 48,198 s IM,986 s 

Q. REVENUE FROM LOCAL AND INTERMEDIATE SOURCES 

TolOI 

1,884,7SS 

43,49 1 

4,707 

9,HS 

1,942,388 

During the current year, revenues from local and intermediate sources (Exhibit C-3 and H-2) consisted of lhe following: 

l)rapeny °l'axc,-; 

Pounhhti ~'C:. 1r11oru111 
Donn1lons/Oltl• 
Sr,veinl EdUl,}i'liOl1 COOJ) 
lnvosttmmt lnt,;:Om¥ 
Facility Rt'nl.11 
ln:mrance Recovery 
r-aod S.:iles 
C.impus Ac tiv ity P.und 
CammunHy E::duc.011on 
Co ,curne;ular J\cttvnic , 
BUii.; Kid IJ.(l)'Ctm,1; 

O!h@r 

Generill Fund 
4 1,360,~60 $ 

J,3S,SQ7 

-~9.4('4 
l l.000 
)9, )8) 

125,176 
53,667 

103,328 

102,(110 

170,036 
l67.47~ 

4l.8JU66 $ 

Spec1.il Debt S ervice 
Revenue J:'und Fund 

$ 4 ,6:27,:2l9 
3 6,H:ZH 

l.ll0.Gl4 
1,714 j,()77 

3 14,350 
205,301 

J,ZOZ 

1,73~.l7I s 4 .(>67.l -14 

R. JOINT VENTURE - SHARED SERVICE ARRANGEMENT 

C~p1t.il 

Pro1ects Fund TUL;il 

s 45,987,799 
l72,l95 
3.19,404 

l,:?31,6t4 
I ,SS9 4S,7Jl 

llS, 176 

5J,ij67 
J 14+350 
205.301 
I0:!,328 
102,6 10 
170,038 
170 767 

s 1,559 s 4~1,:?42,!42 

The District is the fiscal agent for a Shared Services Arrangement ("SSA") which provides !or the; efficient delivery of 
legally required special education and related service,~ to eligible students with disabil ities from the mcmbc1· districts. In 
addition to the District. other member districts include Comfort ISD, Harper lSD. and Doss CCSD. All se1·vices are 
provided by the fiscal agent. The member districts provide the funds to the fiscal agent. 

According to guidance prnvided in TEA 's Resource Guide, the District has accounted for the fiscal agent's activities of 
the SSA in Special Reve11ue Fund 437 (Exhibit M-2), Shared Services Arrangements - Special Education and is accounted 
for using Model 3 in the SSA section of the Resource Guide. Expenditures of the SSA are summarized below; 

Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Comfort- lnd1.:pcndcnl School District 
l-laJ"per Independent School District 
Doss CCSD 

S. LEASES 

$ 

$ 

8 16,588 
301 ,768 

100,0 17 
7,241 

1,225,614 

Fredericksburg ISD operntes no capital leases, Commitments under operating (non-capital) lease agreements for 
equipment (mainly copy machines) provides for minimum future rental payments a:; of June 30, 2021 .is fo llows: 

Year Ending 
6/30/202 1 

Total Minimum Rentals 

Rcnlal E:1pcnsc in current liscal year 

Amount 
105,712 

$ 105,712 

$ IOS,7t2 
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T. INSURANCE COVERAGE 

During the fiscal year, Fredericksburg ISD participated in the TASB Risk Management Fund's (the Fund's) Propc1iy Casualty 
Program with coverage in: 

Auto Liability 
General Liabi lity 
Property 

Auto Physical Damage 
Legnl & School Liability 
Privacy & Information Security 

The Fund was created and is operated undc:r the provision orthe lnterlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 ol' the Texas Oovemment 
Code. All members participating in the Fund execute lnterlocal Ai:rcemcnts that define the responsibilities orthe parties. 

The Fund purchases stop-loss coverage for protection against catastrophic and larger than nnticipated claims for the Property 
Casualty Program. The terms and limits of the stop-loss program vary by line of coverage. The Fund uses the services of an 
independent actuary to determine the adequacy or reserves and fully funds those 1·e-se1·ves. For the current fiscal year, the fund 
anticipates Fredericksburi: ISD has no additional liability beyond the contractual obligations for payment of contributions. 

The Fund engages the services of an independent auditor lo conduct u financial uudit aner the close of each plan year on August 
3 1. The audit is accepted by the Fund's Board of Trustees in February of the following year. The Fund's audited financial statements 
ns of August J I. 2020, are available nt the TASB offices a11d hnve been filed with the Texas Department of Insurance in Austin. 

U. RECAPTURE PAYMENTS TO THE STATE 

In the 2004-2005 fiscnl year. the District was designated n property wealthy district by the State. To that end, the District must share 
its local property tax revenue with the State or othe1· districts. The District passed the necessary election to authorizi: paymc:nt of tax 
revenues to another district or to the State. Following arc the recuplure payments and percentage of loc.il property tax revenue made 
each year: 

2004-2005 $ 

2005-2006 
2006-2007 
2007-2008 
2008-2009 
2009-20 10 
2010.20 11 
20 11-20 12 
2012-2013 
2013-20 14 
201 4-20 15 
2015-20 16 
2016-20 17 
2017-2018 
2018-2019 
2019-2020 
2020-2021 

Total to Date $ 

2,302,45 I 
4,728,723 
6,205,368 
5,231.373 
7,409,328 
4,511 ,341 
4,725.458 
5,516.456 
5,309,142 
5, 107,6!),1 
5,374,882 
5,258,645 
7,11 9.606 
9,738,005 

12,915,801 
13,355,333 
16,004,619 

120,8 14,225 

12.98% 
22.95% 
29.48% 
27.59% 
36.22% 
20.54% 
21.85% 
25.58% 
23 93% 
21.51% 
21. 10% 
22.82% 
25.47% 
30.84% 
33.94% 
33.33% 
38.70% 

The financinl calculation for sharing local prope11y tax revenue is strictly based on wealth per average daily attendance. The amount 
that the district spends is not relevant, only the tnx revenues collected and the number of weighted students attending FISD schools. 
The appraisals cannot be lowered so that the tax revenues arc lower because the local appraisal district is charged to appraise 
properties based on market value. The Texas State Comptl'oller's office verifies the market values annually. lflhc local appraisal 
district does not value within a certain range of the state's calculations, the state will presume their values are accurate nnd will use 
their values instead of the local appraisnl values. Recapture payments would still be due to the State bused on those calculations 
and the District would receive less tax revenue and have less to spend on the education of the local students. 
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V. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

The District provides opportunities for employees to purticiputc in elective employee paid benefits such as dental. disability. life. 
accident, emergency transport, cancel' insurances. Additionally, the distl'ict pl'ovides these benefits: 

Social Security 
The District pa11icipates in a Section 218 Agreement with the IRS for non• professional employees. This voluntary agreement 
between the District and the Social Security Ad1t1inistration was established to provide Social Security and Medicare Hospital 
Insurance (HI) or Medicare coverage only for non-professional employees of the District. All employees are covered fot the 
Medicare. This agreement is authorized under Section 218 of the Social Security Act. Employees covered under a Section 218 
Agreement hnve the same coverage and benefit rights as employees in the private sector. The Disu·ict contl'ibuted to the Social 
Security insurance plan as follows: 

Year Ended 6/30/17 
Yeal' !Znded 6/30/18 
Year Ended 6/30/19 
Year Endcd 6/30/20 
Year Ended 6/3()/2 I 

Employee Health Care Covernge 

$ 684,202 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

690,523 
668,759 
634,540 
787.107 

The District utilizes TRS-ActiveCare. the statewide health coverage program for pub I ic education employees established by the 77th 
Texas Legislature in 2002. Of the more ihan unc thousand school districts/entities el igible to participate in TRS-ActiveCnre. over 
90 pe1·cent do so. The District employees am eligible to participate in one of three PPO plan options administered by Aetna and 
WellSystems nnd Cat·emntk. 

TRS-ActiveCare is a selt~fundcd prognim, nut an insured plan. Rates and benefits ai-e not determined by the vendors administering 
the progrnm. hut are established by the TRS Trustees based on the claims experience of the plan. 

During the year the District contributed $235.00 pe1· month toward the plan premiums for each enrolled employee. 
Contributions to health care coverage for employees arc as follows: 

Year Ended 6/30/17 
Year Ended 6/30/18 
Year Ended 6/30/ 19 
Ye,11· Ended 6/30/20 
Year Ended 6/30/21 

Workers' Compensation Pool 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

985,696 
911 ,334 
898,725 
953.865 
806.507 

During the fiscal year, Fredericksburg ISD met its statutory worker.i' compensation obligat ions through participation in the TASB 
Risk Management Fund (the Fund). The Pund was created and is operated under the provisions of the lnterlocal Cooperation Act. 
Chapter 79 1 or the Texas Government Code. The Fund's Workers' Compensation Program is authorized by Chapter 504, Texas 
Labol' Code. All districts participating in the Fund execute lnterlocal Agreements that define the responsibilities oflhc parties. The 
Fund provides statutory workers' compensntion benefits to its members ond their injured employees. 

The Fund and its members are protected against higher than expected claims costs through the purchase of stop loss coverage for 
any claim in excess of the Fund's self-insured retention of $2 million. The Fund uses the services of an independent actuary to 
determine reserve adequacy and fully funds those reserves. As of August 31, 2020, the Fund carried a discounted reserve of 
$44,135.645 for future development on reported claims and claims that hove been incurred but not yet repo1ted. For the current 
fiscal year, the Fund anticipated no additional liabili ty lo members beyond their contractual obligations for pnymenl of contributions. 

The Fund engages the services of an independent auditor to conduct a financial nudil after the close of each plan year on August 
31 . The audit is approved by the Fu11d's Board ol'Trustees in FebruaJ"y of the following year. The Fund's audited financial statements 
as of August 31 , 2020, are available on the TASB Risk Management Pund website and hove been filed with the Texas Depnrtment 
of Insurance in Austin. 
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Unemployment Compensation Pool 
During the fiscal year, Fredericksburg £SD provided unemployment compensation coverage to its employees through purticipution 
in the TASB Risk Management Fund (the Fund). The Fund was created and is operated under the provisions of the lnterlocal 
Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code. The Fund's Unemployment Compensation Program is authorized by 
Section 22.005 of the Texas Education Code and Chapter 172 of the Texas Local Government Code. All members participating in 
the Fund execute lntetlocal Agreements that define the responsibilities or the parties. 

The Fund llleets its quartel'ly obligation to the Texas Workforce Commission. Expenses are accrued monthly until the quarterly 
payment has bi::en made. Expenses enn be reasonably estimated; therefore, there is no need for specific or aggregate stop loss 
covernge for Unemployment Compensation pool. For the current fiscal year, the Fund anticipates that the District has no additional 
liability beyond their contractual obligation for payment of contribution. 

The Fund engages the services of an independent auditor to conduct a financial audit after the close of each plan year on August 
31. The audit is accepted by the Fund's Bourd of Trustees in February of the fo llowing year. ll1e r und's audited financial 
statements as of August 31 , 2020, are available on the TASB Risk Management Fund website and have been filed with the Texns 
Department of Insurance in Austin. 

W. OFFICE SPACE LEASE AGREEMENT 

rn August of 2017, the district entered into an interlocal office lease agreement with Gillespie Central Appraisal District. 
The lease agreement is $6,000 per month for I 80 months ending August 31, 2031. Total rent revenue for 2021 was 
$72,000. 

X. NEGATIVE UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 

The unrestricted net position for the governmental activities retlects a large negative balance in the amount of ($8,503,061). 
This is due: lo the implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 regarding Ne/ Pension liability nnd No. 75 regarding Other 
Post-Employment Benefits. The District was required to recognize their proportionate share of the TRS Pension Plan liability, 
deferred outtlows and inllows of resources, as well as the TRS Care Plan liabi lity, defe1-red outflows and deferred inflows 
of resources. 

Y. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The District has evaluated subsequent events through Novc;mber 5, 2021 . the dole which the financial statements were 
available to he issued. The District is not aware of any subsequent events that materially impact the financial statements. 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

D11tu 

Coillrol 

Codes 

REVENUES: 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 

$ 43 , I 02,440 $ 43,067.310 $ 
5,385,005 

867.000 5900 Federal Program Revenues 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

0011 Instruction 
0012 Instructional Resources and Media Services 
0013 Ctmiculum and Instructional Staff Development 
0021 Instructional Leadership 
0023 School Leadership 
0031 Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 
0032 Social Work Services 
0033 Health Services 
0034 Student (Pupil) Transportation 
0036 Extracurricular Activities 
004 1 General Administration 
oos I Facilities Maintenance and Operations 
0052 Security and Monitoring Services 
OOS3 Data Processing Services 
0061 Community Services 

Capital Outlay: 
008 1 Facilities Acquisition and Construction 

Intergovernmental: 
0091 

0092 

0093 

0099 

Contracted Instructional Services Between Schools 
Incremental Costs Associated with Chapter 41 
Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA 
Other Intergovernmental Charges 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 

0100 Fund Balance - faly 1 (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) $ 

2.757.560 
430,000 

46.290.000 

17,985,949 
300,429 

91 ,667 
284,133 

1,766,429 
956.138 
60,020 

279,060 
1.411 ,345 
1,581,332 
1,6 16.602 

3.961.418 
63,395 

1, 11 7,008 
493,489 

12,661 ,656 
34,930 

925.000 
700.000 

46.290,000 

16.202,721 

16,202.721 $ 

49 

49.319,315 

17,819,515 
300,429 

96,211 
381.478 

1,922,083 
854,944 
65,890 

337,524 
1,459,845 
1,727,935 
1,652,799 
3,975.316 

66,572 
1,454,456 

558.929 

7.835,000 

15,836,000 
47,433 

925,000 
700.000 

58.017,359 

(8,698,044) 

16,202,72 1 

7,504,677 $ 

Actual Amounts 
(GAN' BASIS) 

42,838,268 $ 

5,403.723 
812.866 

49,054,857 

15,069,584 
201 ,503 

17,534 
367,944 

1,845,933 
813,547 

4.760 
336.621 
939.874 

1.513,811 
1)34,347 
3,529,916 

50,208 
1, 190,172 

467.812 

7,725,526 

16,004,6 19 
47,003 

816,588 
673,339 

52.950.641 

(3,895,784) 

16,202,721 

12,306.937 $ 

EXHIBIT G-1 

Variance With 
Final Budget 
Positiv~ or 
(Negative) 

(229,042) 
18,7 18 

(54, 134) 

(264.458) 

2,749,931 
98.926 
78,677 
13.534 
76, 150 
41,397 
61 , 130 

903 
519.971 
214,124 

318,452 
445,400 

16,364 
264,284 

91. 117 

I 09,474 

( 168,6 19) 
430 

108.4 12 
26,661 

5,066,718 

4,802,260 

4,802,260 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUN E 30, 2021 

FY 2021 
Plan Year 2020 

FY 2020 
Plan Year 2019 

PY2019 
Plan Year20I8 

District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

State's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) Associated with 
the District 

Total 

District's Covered Payroll 

District's Propo1'tionate Share of the Net Pension Liabil ity (Asset) os a 
Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 

0.015517105% 

$ 8,310.645 $ 

17,63 1,018 

$ 25,941 ,663 $ 

$ 22.662,789 $ 

36.67% 

75.54% 

0.015340443% 0.016151 168% 

7,974.442 $ 8,889,995 

lS,982,907 17,901.514 

23 ,957,349 $ 26,791 ,509 

21.571.722 $ 2 l,959.53 l 

36.97% 40.48% 

75.24% 73.74% 

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, P20. I 83 requires that the information on this schedule be data from the period corresponding with the 
periods covered as of the measurement dates of August 31, 2020 for year 2021, August 31, 2019 for year 2020, August 31 , 2018 for year 
2019, August 31, 2017 for year 2018, August 31 , 2016 [or year 2017, August 31, 201 S tbr year 2016 and August 31, 2014 for year 2015. 

This schedule shows only the years for which this information is available. Additional information will be added until IO years of data 
ore avnilable nnd reported. 
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EXHIBIT G-2 

F'Y 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 
Plan Year 2017 Plan Year2016 Plan Year2015 Plan Year20 14 

0.017369688% 0.017432007% 0.0 172795% 0.0125887% 

$ 5.553,890 $ 6,587,296 $ 6.108,073 $ 3,362.617 

10.914.881 13,438.432 12,882,586 11 .068,612 

$ I 6,468,771 $ 20,025,728 $ I 8,990,659 $ 14,431 ,229 

$ 2 t.95 l.811 $ 22,804,569 $ 22,,189,371 $ 20.241,241 

25.30% 28.88% 27. 16% 16.61% 

82.17% 78.00% 78.43% 83.25% 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF DISTRJCT'S CONTRIBUTIONS FOR PENSIONS 

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021 

202 1 2020 2019 

Contractually Required Contribution $ 685,789 $ 627,768 $ 539,750 

Contribution in Relation to the Contractually Requit·ed Contribution (685,789) (627,768) (539,750) 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 
$ . $ - $ 

District's Covered Payroll $ 22,876,555 $ 22.507.419 $ 2 1,363.794 

Contributions as f1 Percentage of Covered Payroll 3.00% 2.79% 

Note: OASB Codi11cation, Vol. 2. P20. I 83 requires that the data in this schedule be presented as of the District's respective fiscal years as 
opposc:d to the lime petio<ls covered by the measurement dates ending August 3 1 ol'the preceding year. 

This schedule shows only the years for which this information is available. Additional informntion will be added until IO years of data are 
available and reported. 
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EXHIBIT G-3 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

$ 553,415 $ 462,233 $ 502,958 $ 448.455 

(553,415) (462.233) (502,958) (448,455) 

$ • $ • $ • $ 

$ 22,048,830 $ 22,804,569 $ 22,489,371 $ 21,24 1,24 1 

2.5 1% 2.02% 2.22% 2.l 1% 
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EXHIBIT G-4 
FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY 

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

District's Proportion ofthe Net Liability (Asset) for Other 
Postcmployment Benefits 

District's Proportionate Shure ol'Net OPBB Liability (Asset) 

Slate's Proportionate Share oflhc Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 
Associated with the District 

Total 

District's Covered Payroll 

District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability 
(Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total OPEB 
Liability 

$ 

$ 

$ 

FY 202 1 FY 2020 FY 20 19 
Plan Year2020 Plan Year2019 Plan Year2018 

0.024655365% 

9,372,618 $ 

12.594,55 1 

21,967,169 $ 

22,662,789 $ 

41.36% 

4.99% 

0.025562079% 

12,088,6 18 $ 

16,063,072 

28, 151 ,690 $ 

21.57 I. 722 $ 

56.04% 

2.66% 

0.026692921 % $ 

13,328,020 $ 

18.479.026 $ 

31,807,046 $ 

21 ,959,53 1 $ 

60.69% $ 

1.57% $ 

FY 2018 
Plan Year 2017 

0.026902808% 

11 ,699,022 

17.249.115 

28,948,137 

21 ,95 1,8 11 

53.29% 

0.91% 

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, PS0.238 states that the information on this schedule should be determined as of the measurement date. 
Therefore the amounts reported for FY 2021 nre for the tneasuremenl date of August JI, 2020. The amounts for FY 2020 are for the 
rneasurement date of August 31, 20 19. The nmounts for FY 2019 are for the rneasurement date August 31, 2018. The amounts for r,y 
2018 are based on the August 3 I, 2017 meusuremcnt date. 

This schedule shows only the years for which this infonnation is available. Additional information will be added until IO years of data are 
avai lnble and reported. 
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EXI-IIBITG-5 
FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL D[STR1CT 

SCHEDULE OF DISTR1CT'S CONTRIBUTIONS FOR OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF TEXAS 

FOR FISCAL YEAR202I 

2021 2020 2019 2018 

Contractually Required Contrihution $ 193,579 $ 185,951 $ 181,531 $ 178,347 

Contribution in Relation to the Contractually Required Contribution (193,579) (185,951) (181 ,531 ) ( 178.347) 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 
$ $ .. • $ • $ 

District's Covered ()ayroll $ 22,876,555 $ 22,507,419 $ 21,363,794 $ 22,048.830 

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 0.85% 0.83% 0.85% 

Note: GASB Codification, Vol. 2, PS0.238 requires that the data in this schedule he presented as of the District's respective fiscal years as 
opposed to the time periods covered by the measurement dates ending August 31 of the preceding year. 

Information in this schedule should be provided only for the yea1·s where data is available. Eventually 10 years of data should be presented. 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR Tl-IE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 

A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Cha11ges of /Je11ejit Terms 

There were no changes of benefit ter,ns lhat affected measurement of the lotal pension liabilily during lhe measuremenl period. 

Clumge.f of As.m111ptio11s 
There were no changes in the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the Total Pension liability during the 
measurement period. 

H. Other Pos1-EmpJoymen1 Benefi1 Plan 

Chrmges 111 Be11eflt Terms 
There were no ehru1ges of benefit terms during the measurement period that affected the Total OPEB liability. 

Changes in Assumptio11.1· 
The following were changes to the actuarial assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement or Total OPEB liability 
since the prior measurement period: 

• The discount rate changed from 2.63 percent as of Augu~t 31, 2019 10 2.33 percent .is of August 31, 2020. This 
change increased the: Tota.I OPEB Liability. 

• The participation rnti.: for post-65 retirees was lowcri.:d from 50 pcn;cnt lo 40 percent. This change lowered the Total 
OPEB liability. 

• The ultimate health care trend rate assumption was lowered from 4.50 percent to 4.25 percent as a result of Congress' 
repeal of the excise (Cadillac) tax on high-cost employer health plans in December 20 19. This change lowered the 
Total OPEB Liability. 
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COMBINING AND OTHER STATElVIENTS 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

205 21 1 224 240 
Data ESEA I.A IDEA - Parl B National 
Control Improving Formula Br-eaktast and 
Codes Head Start Basic P1·ogram Lunch Program 

ASSETS 

1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 55,237 $ $ 17,777 $ 306,042 
1120 Investments - Cunent 259,490 
1240 Due from Other Governments 71,887 56,091 
1290 Other Receivables 193 
!300 Inventories 30,963 
1410 Prepayments 415 
1000 Total Assets $ 55,237 $ 71,887 $ 17,777 $ 653 , 194 

LIABILITIES 

21 10 Accounts Payable $ $ $ $ 4 15 
2160 Accrued Wages Payable 55,237 44 ,171 17,777 
2170 Due to Other Funds 27,716 64,685 
2180 Due to Other Governments 

2300 Unearned Revenue 43,49 1 
2000 Total Liabilities 55,237 71,887 17,777 108,591 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable Fund Balance: 

3410 Inventories 30,963 
3430 Prepaid Items 415 

Restricted Fund Balance: 

3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 513,225 
Committed Fund Balance: 

35 10 Construction 

3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 

3000 Total Fund Balances 544,603 

4000 Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 55,237 $ 71,887 $ 17,777 $ 653,194 
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242 244 255 263 266 276 
Summer Career and ESEA ILA Title III. A ESSER -School Tille I - SIP 
reeding Technical• Training and English Lang. Emergency Academy 
Pmgram Basic Ol'ant 

$ 149,3 14 $ $ 

10,945 

$ 160,259 $ 

$ 

7 1,463 
88,796 

160,259 

$ 

$ 160,259 $ 

14,87 1 

14,871 $ 

$ 

14,87 1 

14,871 

14,871 $ 

Recruiting Acquisition Relief Grant 

$ $ $ 

2,365 9,347 19,6 12 

2,365 $ 9,347 $ 19,612 $ ----
$ $ $ 

2,365 9,347 19,612 

2,365 9,347 19,612 

2,365 $ 9,347 $ 19,612 $ 
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EXHIBIT H-1 (Cont'd) 

277 28 1 
Coronavirus CRRSA-

Relief Fund ESSER rJ 

CARES 

$ $ 

1,952,686 

$ $ 1,952,686 

$ $ 

1,952,686 

1,952,686 

$ $ 1,952,686 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTR.ICT 
COMB INING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 202 1 

289 313 314 385 
Oatp Other Federal SSA SSA Visually 
Control Special IDEA. Part B IDEA, Parl B hnpnired 
Codes Revenue Funds Formula P1·eschool SSYI 

ASSETS 
1110 Cash and Cash Equivalents $ $ $ $ 
lllO Investments - Current 
1240 Due from Other Governments 15,493 378,377 205 3,000 
1290 Other Receivables 
1300 Inventories 
1410 Prepayments 

1000 Total Assets $ 15,493 $ 378,377 $ 205 $ 3,000 

LIABILITIES 
2 11 0 Accounts Payable $ $ 1,428 $ $ 
2160 Accrued Wages Payable 4,6 19 68,513 
2170 Due to Other Funds 10,874 308,436 205 3,000 
2180 Due to Other Governments 
2300 Unearned Revenue 

2000 Total Liabilities 15,493 378,377 205 3,000 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable Fund Balance: 

3410 Inventories 
3430 Prepaid Items 

Restricted Fund Balance: 
3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 

Committed Fund Balance: 
35 10 Construction 
3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 

3000 Total Fund Balances 

4000 Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 15,493 $ 378,377 $ 205 $ 3,000 
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386 410 426 
Regional Day State School 

School for Instructional Safety & 
lhe Deaf Mnlcrinls Security 

$ $ $ 

8,551 62,379 

$ 8,551 $ 62,379 $ 

$ $ $ 

8,55 1 62,379 

8,551 62,379 

$ 8,551 $ 62,379 $ 

429 
Other State 

Special 
Revenue Funds 

$ $ 

24, 108 

$ 24,108 $ 

$ $ 

24, 108 

24, 108 

437 

SSA 

Special 
Education 

140,279 

7,433 

1,255 

148,967 

1,070 
l 19,330 

160 
28,407 

148,967 

$ 

$ 

$ 

461 
Campus 
Activity 

Funds 

266,6 l 3 

266,613 

266,613 

266,61 3 

EXHIBlT H-1 (Cont'd) 

459 
Other SSA 

Special 

Revi:nue Funds 

$ 4,707 

$ 4,707 

$ 

4,707 

4,707 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Special 
Revc:nue Funds 

$ 

$ 

$ 

939,969 
259,490 

2,637,350 
193 

30,963 
1,670 

3,869,635 

2,913 
381, 110 

2,597,791 

28,407 
48, 198 

3,058,419 

30,963 
415 

513,225 

266,613 

811 ,216 

$ 24, I 08 $ 148,967 $ 266,613 $ 4,707 $ 3,869,635 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Data 

Contrnl 

CodL-s 

1110 

1120 

1240 

1290 
1300 

1410 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments - Current 
Due from Other Governments 
Other Receivables 
Inventories 
Prepayments 

1000 Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
2110 Accounts Payable 
2 160 Accrued Wages Payable 
2110 Due to Other Funds 
2180 Due to Other Governments 
2300 Unearned Revenue 

2000 Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Nonspendable Fund Balance: 
3410 Inventories 
3430 Prepaid Items 

Restricted Fund Balance: 
3450 Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction 

Committed Fund Balance: 
3510 Construction 
3545 Other Committed Fund Balance 

3000 Total Fund Balances 

4000 Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

JUNE 30, 2021 
----------

61 

$ 

690 Total 

Local 
Capital 
Projects 

Nomnajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

42,073 $ 

337,424 
982,042 
596,914 

2,637,350 
193 

30,963 
1,670 

$ 379,497 $ 4,249,132 

$ 

379,497 

379,497 

$ 2,913 
381,110 

2,597,791 
28,407 
48,198 

3,058,419 

30,963 
415 

513,225 

379,497 
266,613 

1,190,713 

$ 379,497 $ 4,249,132 

EXHIBIT H-1 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Data 

Conlrol 
Codes 

REVENUES: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 
5900 Federal Program Revenues 

so20 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

oo 11 Instruction 
0012 lnstructional Resources and Media Services 
0013 Curriculum and Instructional Staff Development 
0021 Instructional Leadership 
0023 School Leadership 
0031 Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 
0032 Social Work Services 
0033 Health Services 
0035 Food Services 
0036 ExtractuTicular Activities 
0041 General Administration 
0051 Facilities Maintenance and Operations 
0052 Security and Monitoring Services 
0053 Data Processing Services 
0061 Community Services 

Cap.ital Outlay: 
0081 Facilities Acquisition and Construction 

I ntergovernmenta I: 
0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

0100 Fund Balance - July I (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance • June 30 (Ending) 

$ 

$ 

62 

205 

Head Start 

• $ 

3<19.000 

349,000 

211 
ESEA l, A 
Improving 

Basic Program 

- $ 

510.903 

510,903 

224 240 
IDEA - Part B National 

Formu.la Breakfast and 
Lunch Program 

- $ 

197,248 

197.248 

318,256 
28,693 

342,469 

689,4 18 ------------------

320,555 

28.445 

349,000 

- $ 

485,777 
19, 131 

5,275 

720 

510,903 

- $ 

197,248 

197,248 

- $ 

524,826 

52U26 

164.592 

380.01 I 

544,603 



EXHIBIT H-2 (Cont'd) 

242 244 255 263 266 276 277 281 

Summer Career and ESEA II.A Title Ill. A ESSER -School Tille I - SIP Corom1Yirus CR.RSA-
Feeding Technical - lrnining and English Lang. Emergency Academy Relief Fund ESSER II 
Program Basic Grant Recruiting Acquisition Relief Grant CARES 

$ 40 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

19,70 1 
843.642 58,908 43,60 1 35,960 361,5 17 9,676 1,952.686 

863,383 58.908 43,601 35,960 361,5 17 9,676 1,952.686 

50,796 5.603 11,985 315,178 9.676 1,864,035 
31 ,5 15 

3,88 1 26,091 23,075 
7,439 900 
1.957 530 

4,23 1 2,5 1 I 
56,606 

40,43 1 
863,383 

5,908 

863,383 58.908 43.601 35,960 361.5 17 9,676 1,952.686 

$ - $ • $ • $ • $ • $ • $ • $ 
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Datu 
Control 

Codes 

REVEN UBS: 

FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NON MAJOR GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

289 313 314 
Other Federal SSA SSA 

Special IDEA. Part B IDEA, Part B 
Revenue Funds Formuln Prt;lschool 

5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 

$ - $ 

37,728 

- $ - $ 

5900 Federal Program Revenues 666,138 3,781 

385 
Visually 

Impaired 

SSVI 

3.000 

-----·-----
5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
0011 Instruction 
0012 Instructional Resources and Media Services 
0013 Curriculum and Instructional Staff Development 
0021 Instructional Leadership 
0023 School Leadership 
003 1 Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 
0032 Social Work Services 
0033 Health Services 
0035 Food Services 
0036 Extracurricular Activities 
004 1 General Administration 
oos I Facilities Maintenance and Operations 
0052 Security and Monitoring Services 
0053 Data Processing Services 
006 t Community Services 

Capital Outlay: 
0081 Facilities Acquisition and Construction 

Intergovernmental: 
0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

otoo Fund Balance - July I (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) 

37,728 

612 

37,116 

37,728 

$ • $ 

64 

666,138 3,78 1 

32.617 

764 

423,65 1 
69, 106 

140,000 

3.78 1 

3,000 

3.000 

----------
666,138 3,78 1 3,000 

- $ - $ 



EXHIBIT H-2 (Cont'd) 

386 410 426 429 437 461 459 Total 
Regional Day State School Other State SSA Campus Other SSA Nonmajor 

School for Instructional Safety & Special Special Activity Special Special 
the Deaf Materials Security Revenue Funds Education Funds Revenue Funds Revenµe Funds 

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1.210.614 $ 205,706 $ - $ 1.734.616 
8,551 I 48,557 45.827 24,208 28,574 307,111 

5,413,257 

8,551 148,557 45,827 24,208 1,210,614 205,706 28.574 7,454,984 

8,551 148,557 24,108 473,070 44.663 5.646 4,005,458 
19,929 70,575 

100 8,094 61 ,24 1 
299,994 314,372 

83 2,570 
316.367 10,502 22,928 780,190 

913 126,625 
104,125 173.001 

1.388,209 
128,575 128,575 

1,158 I, 158 
893 893 

45,827 45,827 
5,908 

37,836 

6,000 146,000 

8,551 148.557 45,827 24,208 1,210.614 203.752 28,574 7,288,438 

1,954 166,546 

264,659 644,670 

$ . $ . $ . $ - $ . $ 266,613 $ . $ 811 ,216 
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FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR Tl-IE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202 1 

Datn 
Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 
5900 Federal Program Revenues 

5020 Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
0011 Instruction 
00 12 Instructional Resources and Media Services 
00 13 Curriculum and Instructional Staff Developme-nt 
002 1 Instructional Leadership 
0023 School Leadership 
0031 Guidance, Counseling, and Evaluation Services 
0032 Social Work Services 
0033 Health Services 
0035 Food Services 
0036 Extracun·icular Activities 
004 1 General Administration 
005 1 Facilities Maintenance and Operations 
0052 Secm·ity and Monitoring Services 
0053 Data Processing Services 
0061 Community Services 

Capital Outlay: 
008 I Facilities Acquisition and Construction 

Intergovernmental: 
0093 Payments to Fiscal Agent/Member Districts of SSA 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance 

01 00 Fund Balance· July I (Beginning) 

3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) 

$ 

$ 

66 

690 Total 
Locnl 

Capital 
Projects 

655 $ 

655 

16.088 

22,644 

38.732 

(38.077) 

417,574 

379,497 $ 

Nonmojor 
Governn1en1al 

Funds 

1,735,271 
307,111 

5,413,257 

7,455,639 

4,005.458 
70,575 
61.24 1 

31 4,372 
2,570 

780, 190 
126,625 
173.001 

1,388,209 
128,575 

1.158 
16.981 
45,827 
5,908 

37,836 

22,644 

146,000 

7,327. 170 

128,469 

1,062,244 

1,190,713 

EXHIBIT H-2 



T.E.A REQUIRED SCHEDULES 



Last IO Years 

2012 and prior years 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

20 17 

2018 

20 19 

2020 

FREDERICKSBURG fNDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OP DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

(I) (2) 

Tax Rates 

Maintenance Debt Service 

Various Various 

1.040000 0.106200 

1.040000 0.106200 

1.040000 0.106200 

1.040000 0.106200 

1.040000 0.106200 

1.040000 0. 106200 

1.040000 0.106200 

0.970000 0.106200 

202 1 (School year under audit) 0.949100 0.106200 

1000 TOTALS 
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(3) 

Assessed/Appraised 
Value for School 

Tax Purposes 

$ 22,627,550,545 

2,388,047,461 

2,466,49 1,973 

2,602,405,775 

2,725,936,050 

2,963,946,519 

3,340,446,344 

3,623,776,653 

4, 140,083,720 

4,283,686,675 



EXHIBIT J-1 

(10) (20) (3 1) (32) (40) (50) 

Beginning Curren! Entire Ending 
Balance Yenr's Maintenance Debt Service Year's Balance 
7/1 /2020 Total Levy Collections Collections Adjustments 6/30/2021 

$ 220, 11 2 $ $ 6,244 $ $ (1 , 139) $ 2 12,729 

33,135 1,481 149 (3) 3 1,502 

31,283 2,63 1 267 28,385 

98,720 29,6 1 I 3,015 66,095 

106,563 35,392 3,610 399 67,960 

124,799 43,604 4,433 720 77,482 

167,127 71 , 195 7,257 10,821 99,496 

280,433 130,594 13,276 6,675 143,238 

833,00 I 526,893 57,418 (6, 114) 242,576 

46, IO 1,036 40,516,754 4,530,833 (38,960) 1,014,489 

$ 1,895, 173 $ 46,101 ,036 $ 4 1,364,399 $ 4,620,258 $ (27,600) $ 1,983,952 
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F'REDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL· CHfLD NUTRITION PROGRAM 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Data 

Control 

Codes 

REVENUES: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
ssoo State Program Revenues 
5900 Federal Program Revenues 

so.:w Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

0035 Food Services 

G030 Total Expenditures 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 

0100 Fund Balance - July 1 (Beginning) 

$ 

Actual Amounts 

Budgeted Amou,11s 
(GAAi' BASIS) 

Original 

624,507 
64.843 

1.1 13,650 

1.803.000 

1,803,000 

1,803,000 

380,01 l 

Final 

$ 624,507 $ 3 18,256 
64,843 28,693 

1, 113.650 342,469 

1,803.000 689,418 

1.803,000 524,826 ----------
1,803,000 524.826 

380,0l I 

164.592 

380.01 I 

$ 

3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) $ 380,011 $ 380.01 I $ 544,603 $ 
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EXHIBIT J-2 

Variance With 
Final Fludgcl 
Positive or 
(Negative) 

(306,251 ) 
(36, 150) 

(771 , 181) 

( 1,113,582) 

1,278,174 

1,278, 174 

[64,592 

164,592 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - DEBT SERVICE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUN E 30, 2021 

Dula 

Co1lltol 

Codes 

REVENUES: 
5700 Total Local and Intermediate Sources 
5800 State Program Revenues 

S020 Total Revenues 

EXPEND.ITURES: 
Debt Service: 

0011 Principal on Long-Term Debt 
0072 Interest on Long-Term Debt 
0073 Bond Issuance Cost and Fees 

6030 Total Expenditures 

1200 Net Change in Fund Balances 

0100 Fund Balance - Ju ly I (Beginning) 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 

Origh1nl Final 

4.650.962 $ 4,650.962 

4.650,962 4,650,962 

4,040,000 4,040,000 
463,752 463.752 

4.000 4,000 

4,507.752 4,507,752 

143 ,210 143,2 10 

1,545,931 1,545,931 

Aclual Amoullls 
(OAAP BASIS) 

$ 4.667, 144 
19.455 

4.686,599 

4,040,000 
463,602 

4,503,602 

182,997 

1,545,93 1 

$ 

3000 Fund Balance - June 30 (Ending) $ 1,689,141 $ 1,689, 141 $ 1.728.928 $ 
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EXHIBIT J-3 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive or 
(Negative) 

16. 182 
19,455 

35,637 

150 
4.000 

4. 150 

39,787 

39,787 



REPORTS ON INTERNAL CONTROLS, COiv[pLJANCE AND 
FEDERAL AW ARDS 



NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE ANO OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board ol'Trustees 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 
rredericksburg, Texas 78624 

Jndenendent Auditor's Renort 

We hnve nudited, in nccordonce with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stntes of Americn nnd the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of the governn1ental activities, each major fund, nnd the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Fredericksburg lndepen<knt School District, as or and for the year ended June 30, 2021. and the related notes to the linnncial 
statements, which collectively comprise Fredericksburg Independent School District's basic financial statements. and have issued 
our report thereon dated November 5, 2021 . 

lnternnl Control over Finnncinl Reporting 

In plunning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Fredericksburg Independent School District's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expl'essing our opinions on the financial statements. but not for the pu1·pose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness or Fredcricksburg Independent School District's internal control. Accordingly. we do not cxprcss un opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Fredericksburg Independent School Distl'ict's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow munugement or employees. in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a dc:11ciency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is n reasonable possibility thul a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected; on a timely basis. A 
s/gnljlcan/ deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control th.it is less severe than a material 
weakness. yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph ol'this section and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify ony deficiencies in internal control that we conside1· Lo be material weaknesses. 1 lowever. 
material weaknesses rnay exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reaso11<1ble assurance about whether Predericksburg Independent School District's financial statements are free 
from rnaterinl misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contrncts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, und accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards, 

TEL: 830 997 3348 EMAIL: info@nb-cpa.com 
P.O. Box 874 , 512 S Adams Street, Fredericksburg, TX 78624 
MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & TEXAS SOCIETY OF CPAs 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of ou1· testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the efrectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is nn intcgrnl 
part of on audit performed in accordance with Government Audiring Srandards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly. this communication is not suitable fm any other purpose. 

n~.uuJ.IJA/JJ ~ ) P. e. 
NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER. P.C 

Fredericksburg, Texas 

November 5, 2021 
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NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNfFORM GUIDANCE 

t3oord of Trustees 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Fredericksburg, Texas 78624 

Members of the Bontd; 

lndepcndi:nl Attdi Lor' s B,en.Qrl 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Prognm 

We have audited Fredericksburg Independent School District's compliance with ihe types of compliance requirements described 
in the 01'v/B Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Fredericksburg Independent School 
District's m,\jot fedenil pro gm ms for the year ended .lune 30. 2021. Fredericksburg Independent School District 's mi,ior federal 
programs arc identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

M111u,ge111<!llt ·s Respo11s/bllfty 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulatioiis, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards 
applicable to its federnl programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Fredericksburg Independent School District's major federal 
programs based on ou,· audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in lhc United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the Compu·oller General of the United States; and the audit requirements 
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200. Unifor111 tld111inistralive Require111ents, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable ussurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about Fredericksburg Independent School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we consickred necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit pl'Ovides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, our 
audit docs not provide a legal determination of Fredericksburg Independent School District's compliance. 

Op/11/011 011 Et1cl1 M"Jor Feder"{ Program 

In our opinion, Fredericksburg Independent School District, complied, in all material respects. with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its m~jor federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2021 . 

TEL: 830 997 3348 EMAIL: info@nb-cpa.com 
P.O. Box 874 . 512 S Adams Street, Fredericksburg, TX 78624 
MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & TEXAS SOCIETY OF CPAs 
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Report on lnternnl Control over Compliance 

Management of Fredericksbu1·g Independent School Distdct is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internnl 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance. we considered Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requiremems that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to detennine the auditing procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and 
to test and repo1·t on internal control over compliance in nccordance with t·he Uniform Guidance, but not lor the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effcctivem:ss or internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
cffectiveness of Fredericksburg Independent School District's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency In Internal control over compliance exists when thc design or operation of a control over compliance docs not allow 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned runctions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance rcquircrncnt or!\ federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in imernal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance. such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that materi al noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal progr.im will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected. on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in infernal co/1/rol over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal cont ro l ovi:r compliance. yet important enough to merit attention by those 
chnrged with governance. 

Our considernlion of internal control over complinnce was for thc limitcd purpose described in the first parngraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
I lowever, material weaknesscs may exist that have not bccn identificd. 

The purpose of this report on internnl control over compliance is solely to describe the scope or our testing of internal control over 
compliance and the results or that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

;1~.tNld.o~ -r Blo~, P. ~ . 
NEfFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 

Fredericksburg, Texas 

November 5, 2021 
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rREDERJCKSBURO INDEPENDENT SCI IOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

roR TI IE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

I. Summary of the Auditor's Results: 

a Type of repo1t issued on the financial statements of the Fredericksburg Independent Schoof 
District was: un unmodified opinion. 

b. The audit did not disclose any noncompli.rnce which would have been material to the financial 
statements of the Fredericksburg Independent Schoof District. 

c. The audit disclosed no findings of known questioned costs in excess of $25,000 a~ described 
under Unifonn Guidance 2 CFR §200-516. 

d. Type of report issued on compliance for major programs was: an unmodified opinion. 

e. ·me ,mtjor progrnms tested were: 

IDEA B- Part B Formula- Special Education (CFDA #84.027) 

Elementary & Secondary School Emergency Relief (CPDA #84.425D) 

f. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A nnd Type B programs was $750.000. 

g. The Fredericksburg Independent School District did qualify iis a low risk nuditce. 

ll. Findings RelatinR to the Financial Statements Which Are Required to be Reported in Accotd:lnce with 
GeMmlly Accttpteil Governll/ent Audifl11g St(tl111fmfs. 

-None-

HI. Findings ond Questioned Costs for Federol Awords 

-None• 
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FREDERCCKSl3URO INDEPBNDENT SCI !OOL DISTRICT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS/CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202 1 

STATEMENT OF CORRECTIVE ACTION· 
CURRENT YEAR DISCLOSURES 

-None• 

STATEMENT OF CORRECTIVE ACTION -
PIUOR YEAR DISCLOSURES 

-None-
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FRL/DERICKSIJURG JNDEPE:NOEN"I' SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCMEDULE OF EXPENDITURES or- rEDERAL A WARDS 

FOR nm YEAR EN OED JUNE 30, 202 1 

( I) 

FEDERAL ORA NTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ 
PROGRAM or CLUSTER TITLE 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
Passed Tbr0\1'1h State Department of Education 

ESEA. Title I, Part A - Improving Basic Programs 
ESEA, Title I, Pnrt A - Improving Basic Programs 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84.0 I 0A 

'IDEA - Part B, Formula 
*SSA - IDEA - Part B. Formula 
*SSA - IDEA - Part B, Formula 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84.027 

Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 

Career and Technical - Basic Grant 
Career and Technical - Basic Grant 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84.048 

*SSA - IDEA - Part B, Preschool 

Title fll, Part A - English Language Acquisit ion 
Title Ill, Part A - English Language Acquisition 
Title Ill, Part A- Immigrant 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84.365A 

ESEA, Title II, Pllfl A, Teacher Principal Training 
ESEA. Title 11, Part A, Teacher Principal Training 

Total Ass is lance Listing Number 84.367A 

Title I SIP Academy Grant 

Elementary & Secondary School Emer~ncy RelicfFd 
Elemcntnry Secondary School Emergency Relief II 

Total Assistance Listing Number 84.425 

Title JV. Part A, Subpart I 

Total Passed Through State Department of Education 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

lJ.S. DEPARTl\'l.ENTOF HFAL..TH AND HUMAN SERVICFS 
Passed Through State Depattment of Education 

Head Stat1 
Head Start 

Total Assistat1ce Listing Number 93.600 

Total Passed ·rhrough State Department of Education 

(2) (3) 

Federal 

Assistance 
Listing No. 

84.0I0A 
84.0I0A 

84.027 
84.027 
84.027 

84,048 
84,048 

84.173 

84.365A 
84.365A 
84.365A 

84.367A 
84.367A 

84.377A 

84.425D 
84.425D 

84.424A 

93,600 
93.600 

Pass-Through 

Entity Identifying 
Number 

20610101086901 
21610101086901 

216600010869016600 
206600010869016600 
216600010869016600 

20420006086901 
21420006086901 

2l6610010869016610 

2067100 1086901 
2167100 1086901 
21671003086901 

2069450 1086901 
21694501086901 

17610740086901 

2052 !001086901 
21521001086901 

21680101086901 

06-CH I 0076-01-3865 
06-CH I 0076-0 1-3865 

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND JJ UMAN SERVICES 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
Passed Through the State Department of Agriculture 

*School Breakfast Program 

*National School Lunch Program • Cash Assistance 
*National School Lunch Prog. • Non-Cash Assistance 

Total Assistance Listing Number 10.555 
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10.553 

10.555 
10.555 

l!XHIBIT K-1 (Cont'd) 

(4) 

Federal 
Expenditures 

50,505 
460,398 

510,903 

197,248 
202,040 
464,098 

863,386 

867,167 

29,089 
29,819 

58,908 

3.78 1 

13,486 
16,763 
5,712 

35,96 1 

34,655 
8,945 

43.600 

9,676 

361,517 
1,952,686 

2,3 14,203 

37,728 

3.878. 146 

3,878, 146 

50.813 
298, 187 

349,000 

349,000 

349,000 

44,543 

174,924 
123,002 

297,926 



FREDERICKSBURG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCI-I EDU LE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

(I) 

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ 
PROGRAM or CLUSTER TITLE 

*Summer Feeding Prognun - Cash Assistance 

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 

Toi al Passed Through the State Department of Agriculture 

TOTAL ll.S. DEPARTl\lEi'ff OF AGIUCULTlJIU~ 

TOTALE,\_l'ENDITURES OF FEDl;:t{ALAWARDS 

*Clustered Programs 

(2) 

Federal 

Ass istance 
Listing No. 

10.559 

(3) 

Pas s-Through 

Entity ldcntiJy ing 
Number 

$ 

EXHIBIT K•I 

(4) 

Fedt:ntl 
Expend ilurcs 

841,642 

I, 186, 11 I 

1,186,111 

1,186, l l l 

5,413,257 

The above amounts do not include indirect costs of $224,049, Navy•JROTC receipts or $62,246, SMARS receipts of $467,039 and E· 
Rate reimbursements of$59,532. which Hre included as federal revenue in the general fund. 

See Accompanying Noles to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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FREDEfUCKSBVRG INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202 I 

I. For all Federal programs, the District uses tho fund types specified in Te:-.as Education Agency's Financial Acc:01mtabllily 
System Resource Guide. Special revenue funds are used to account for resources reslricled to, or designated for, speci fie 
purposes by a g,·antor. Federal and state financial assistance generally is accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund. 

2. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. The 
Govemme0ntnl rund types and Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement 
focus. All Federal grant funds were accounted for in Special Revenue Fund which is a Governmental Fund type. 

With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities and the fund balance are included on the balance 
sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases in net current assets. The modified accrual basis 
of accounting is used for the Governmental Fune! types. This basis of accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting 
period in which they become susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available, and expenditures in the accounting 
period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for unmatured interest on General Long-Term Debt, which 
is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims nnd judgments, which are recognized when the 
obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 

Federal grant funds an: considered lo be earned lo the extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the grant, and, 
accordingly, when such funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenues until earned. 

3. The period of availability for federal granl funds for the purpose of outstanding obligations made on or before the ending 
date of the federal project period extended 30 days beyond the federal project period ending date, in accordance with 
provisions in the Uniform Guidance. 

4. CFDA number I 0.550 pertains to food commodities distributed by USDA under the following categorical programs (as 
applicable): the National School Lunch Program (CFDA I 0.555), the Child and Adult Care Food Program (CFDA I 0.558), 
the Summer Food Service Program (CFDA 10.559), the Commodity Supplemental Food Program (CFOA 10.565), and the 
Food Distribution Program on Indian Reservations (CFDA I 0.567). USDA deleted this number from the CFDA on May 6, 
2008. The audit covering Fredericksburg Independent School District fiscal year beginning September I, 2015, and future 
audits, will therefore identify commodity assistance by the CFDA numbers of the programs under which USDA donated the 
commodities. 

5. The Disn·ict has elected not to use the I 0-percenl de minlmis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. Indirect 
cost reimbursement for -federnl programs for this fiscal year was received in the amount of $224,049. 
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NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 

November 5, 202 I 

Board of Trustees 
Fredericksburg Independent School District 
Fredericksburg, TX 78624 

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund infonnation of Fredericksburg Independent School District for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with infom1ation about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our 
letter to you dated March 1, 2021. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
infonnation related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by Fredericksburg Independent School District are described in Note I to the financial statements. No 
new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year 
ended June 30, 2021 . We noted no transactions entered into by Fredericksburg Independent School District during 
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and 
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difjlcu/ties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has 
corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and 
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

TEL: 830 997 3348 EMAIL: info@nb~cpa .com 
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Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's 
report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation 
letter dated November 5, 2021. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle ro Fredericksburg Independent School District's financial statements or a determination of the type of 
auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were 
no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as Fredericksburg Independent School District's auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison 
information, the TRS net pension liability schedules and the TRS OPEB Liability schedules, which are required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards and the Texas Education Agency required Exhibits, which accompany the financial 
statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the fonn, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our 
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

Recommendations 

Activity Funds 

Classification 
A scholarship fund is included in the elementary school's activity funds. In accordance with the Activity Fund 
Manual, this fund should not be included in the activity fund but should be shown as a private purpose trust fund. 
Documentation 
Several disbursements of scholarship funds did not have the required documentation. We recommend that all 
activity funds have the required documentation in accordance with the Activity Fund Manual. 



Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees and management of Fredericksburg 
Independent School District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Y1 .../,/,VA cJ.bA-j J- ftoc K.Vl I P, c_ • 
NEFFENDORF & BLOCKER, P.C. 
Fredericksburg, Texas 


